Public Document Pack

Place and Resources Scrutiny
Committee
Date:

Tuesday, 16 November 2021

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

Virtual Meeting via MS Teams Live Event

Membership: (Quorum 3)
Shane Bartlett (Chairman), Andy Canning (Vice-Chairman), Jon Andrews, Piers Brown,
Brian Heatley, Mark Roberts, David Shortell, David Tooke, Bill Trite and Daryl Turner

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ
For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on
01305 252209 / lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free public
app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once
downloaded select Dorset Council.
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding
committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen
to the debate online by using the following link: Link to view Place and Resources Scrutiny
Committee live at 10.00am on 16 November 2021
Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android
phone will need to download the free Microsoft Team App to sign in as a Guest, it is
advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.
Please note that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will
continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.
Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its
business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council’s
website after the event.

AGENDA
Page No.
1

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable
interests as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their
disclosure councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of
the interest and any action they propose to take as part of their
declaration.
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer
in advance of the meeting.

3

CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE
To receive any updates from the Chairman of the Place and
Resources Scrutiny Committee.

4

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee
from town and parish councils and members of the public.
Public speaking has been suspended for virtual committee meetings
during the Covid-19 crisis and public participation will be dealt with
through written submissions only.
Members of the public who live, work or represent an organisation
within the Dorset Council area, may submit up to two questions or a
statement of up to a maximum of 450 words. All submissions must be
sent electronically to lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the
deadline set out below. When submitting a question please indicate
who the question is for and include your name, address and contact
details. Questions and statements received in line with the council’s
rules for public participation will be published as a supplement to the
agenda.
Questions will be read out by an officer of the council and a response
given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder or officer at the meeting. All
questions, statements and responses will be published in full within the
minutes of the meeting. The deadline for submission of the full text
of a question or statement is 8.30am on Wednesday 10 November

2021.
5

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS
To receive questions submitted by councillors. The deadline for receipt
of questions is 8.30am on Wednesday 10 November 2021.

6

DORSET COUNCIL EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS

5 - 28

To consider a report of the Service Manager – Communications and
Engagement.
7

SOCIAL MOBILITY IN DORSET

29 - 44

To consider a report of the Research Officer.
8

FORMER ST MARY'S SCHOOL IN SHAFTESBURY ACQUISITION

45 - 50

To consider a report of the Corporate Director for Education and
Learning.
9

DORSET COUNCIL CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCY
STRATEGY PROGRESS REPORT
To consider a report of the Sustainability Team Manager.

10

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY
A review of the relevant Dorset Council performance dashboard to
inform the scrutiny committee’s forward plan and identify items for
deep dives.
Committee members to flag up if any areas for potential review:
Operational – Corporate: Councillors Brian Heatley and David
Shortell
Operational – Place: Councillors Mark Roberts, David Tooke and Jon
Andrews
HR: Councillors Andy Canning and Bill Trite
The Chairman, Councillor Shane Bartlett, maintains an overview of all
the above areas.

51 - 76

11

PLACE AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD
PLAN

77 - 82

To review the Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan.
12

CABINET FORWARD PLAN AND DECISIONS
To review the Cabinet Forward Plan and decisions taken at recent
meetings.
The Cabinet Forward Plan and decisions of recent meetings are
provided to members of the Place & Resources Scrutiny Committee to
review and identify any potential post decision scrutiny to be
undertaken, by scheduling items into the forward plan to review after a
period of implementation.

13

URGENT ITEMS
To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b)
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall
be recorded in the minutes.

14

EXEMPT BUSINESS
To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following
item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the
meaning of paragraph x of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act
1972 (as amended).
The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the
item of business is considered.
There is no exempt business.

83 - 96

Agenda Item 6

Place & Resources Scrutiny Committee
16 November 2021
Dorset Council External Communications
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr S Flower, Leader of the Council

Executive Director:

M Prosser, Chief Executive

Report Authors: Jen Lowis
Title: Jen Lowis: Service Manager – Communications and Engagement
Tel: 01305 221751
Email: Jennifer.lowis@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
That the committee notes the information provided in this report.
Reason for Recommendation:
This report provides an update and overview of aspects of Dorset Council’s
external communications work, as requested by the Chair of Place & Resources
Scrutiny committee.
1.

Executive Summary

This report provides briefing on aspects of Dorset Council’s external
communications work, as requested by the Chair of Place & Resources Scrutiny
committee. The following information was requested and is answered within this
report:



The protocol for notifying Dorset Council Councillors, and particularly,
ward councillors, before communications are provided to the media – how
this is referenced in the policy and is this happening?
An overview of how social media is used by the council to get messages
out

Page 5



Are we reaching younger people? – example provided of recent
consultation on climate change where the figures were low for younger
people.

2.
Financial Implications
None.
3.
Well-being and Health Implications
None.
4.
Climate implications
None.
5.
Other Implications
None.
6.
Risk Assessment
Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low
7.
N/A

Equalities Impact Assessment

8.

Appendices

8.1

The council’s external communications strategy is provided at Appendix A,
and the council’s media protocol is provided at Appendix B.
9. The protocol for notifying Dorset Council Councillors, and
particularly, ward councillors, before communications are provided
to the media

9.1

In line with the council’s media protocol, all press releases issued by
Dorset Council must be approved by the relevant senior officer and
Portfolio Holder prior to issue. We also seek to inform the relevant ward
councillor/s if a release is about an issue within their specific ward: this
should be done either by the Communications Officer or an officer in the
service in question.

9.2

It should be noted that it is the responsibility of all officers across the
council to keep ward councillors briefed about activity within their ward, as
part of their day-to-day work. This is not the sole responsibility of the

Page 6

Communications team. Officers are regularly reminded of this
responsibility in employee events and briefings.
9.3

Immediately prior to each press release being issued to the media, it is
shared via email with all Dorset Councillors for their information. All Dorset
Councillors also received a weekly e-newsletter with a summary of all
news and updates shared by the council.

10

An overview of how social media is used by the council to get
messages out

10.1

Dorset Council has five main corporate social media accounts on
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn and YouTube. There are also
numerous social media accounts for specific council services such as
libraries, country parks, the Family Information Service, Travel Dorset, and
more. The five main corporate social media accounts are managed by the
central Communications team.

10.2

To give an indication of the reach of these accounts, the number of
followers on the main corporate social media accounts is listed below:






Facebook - 24.5k (6.1% increase since January ‘21)
Twitter - 42.9k (2.1% increase)
Instagram - 4.7k (23.4% increase)
LinkedIn - 3.1k (32.3% increase)
YouTube – 10.5k (16.4% increase)

10.3

Content is tailored to the audience following on each platform. We use a
range of content including photos, gifs, videos and polls to make the
content as engaging as possible. We also share relevant posts from
partner organisations such as Dorset Police and Dorset Clinical
Commissioning Group.

10.4

Dorset Council is a member of many local community Facebook groups
across Dorset and we share relevant local news with those groups for
community awareness and greater reach and engagement.

10.5

It should be noted that social media is not just used for “getting messages
out”. Social media is about having two-way conversations. Council social
media accounts are used to respond to customer service queries received
through the platforms, and to answer questions and comments about key
council projects via our news stories etc.

Page 7

11

Are we reaching younger people? – example provided of recent
consultation on climate change where the figures were low for
younger people.

11.1

It is correct that the response rate to the climate change consultation from
younger people was disappointing with only 0.6% of respondents to the
main survey aged under 18 years, and only 16.4% of respondents to the
version of the survey specifically designed for young people. This was
disappointing because we know that climate change is an issue that many
young people care about deeply. The consultation unfortunately took
place during a Covid lockdown which reduced opportunities to engage
with young people via schools and colleges.

11.3

We recognise that, as a council, we need improve our channels and
methods for engaging young people.

11.2

In response, the Communications team is currently working with the Youth
Participation team in Children’s Services to develop a new approach to
engaging with young people on social media. Young people will be
involved in this work, including in the content creation. We will be
reviewing the platforms we use and developing our messaging and
content to better appeal to and engage young people in Dorset. The
project will also consider other means of better engaging with young
people – e.g. through interactive online engagement software.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 8

Appendix A

External communications strategy
for Dorset Council

Page 9

External communications strategy for Dorset Council
Dorset - a great place to live, work and visit
1 – Introduction
“Public communication is a force for good, improving and, on occasions, saving lives.”
Alex Aiken, Executive Director of Government Communication
This document sets out how communications and marketing will help deliver the council’s strategic objectives
and priorities as set out in the Council Plan
Our aim through this strategy is to allocate professional communications resource where it can best deliver
measurable outcomes in support of council priorities.
This strategy focuses on external communications and engagement – i.e. with audiences outside Dorset Council.
We have a separate but linked strategy for internal communications and employee engagement.

Foreword
“Our ambition is for Dorset to be a great place to live, work and visit. Our priorities
for Dorset are economic growth, protecting our unique environment, providing
suitable housing, and supporting people to stay safe and well within strong, healthy
communities.
“My fellow members and I advocate for Dorset on a local, national and global stage
to achieve these priorities.
“In today’s complex and uncertain world, telling the council’s story simply, effectively
and truthfully has never been more important. Communications play an important
part in achieving our vision, giving residents a clear and coherent picture of what
we’re delivering and why it matters to them and to Dorset’s future.
“This strategy will form the basis of all our communications activity over the next
four years. It sets out our commitment to strategic communications: delivering evidence-based campaigns with
clear objectives that make a measurable difference to achieving council priorities.”
Cllr Spencer Flower, Leader of Dorset Council

The context in which we operate
Population
Dorset (Council area) has a population of 378,500 residents.
Despite a relatively low birth rate and the tendency for younger people to move out of the area, the population
continues to grow slowly, driven mainly by people moving into the county and longer life expectancy. Dorset’s
working age population is expected to see a marginal decline (6%) over the next 25 years.
Dorset is an attractive place for people to settle in their retirement – 29% of the population is aged 65 and over

Page 10

2

(compared to 19% in England and Wales).
Satisfaction with quality of life is generally high in Dorset with crime rates low. But the Dorset rural idyll can
conceal pockets of deprivation, mostly in urban areas (mainly Weymouth and Portland). There is also some rural
deprivation due to isolation and difficulty accessing housing, transport and essential services.
The population is predominantly white British, with 4.4% of our residents Black, Asian and minority ethnic.

Natural, geological and historic environment
Dorset’s natural environment is a great asset.
95 miles of coast in Dorset and Devon are classified as a UNESCO Natural World Heritage Site – the only one in
England. Over half of Dorset is covered by the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty designation; 7% of Dorset is
protected as a Site of Special Scientific Interest; and Dorset has one of the largest areas of protected lowland
heath in Europe.
These designations together mark Dorset as a special place but also present challenges in terms of available land
for delivering housing and employment development.
Dorset also has a rich historic environment, with one in twenty of all the protected ancient monuments in England,
a well preserved pre-historic landscape and around 10,000 listed buildings.

Economy and infrastructure
Employment in Dorset is high but, like the UK, our economy has a productivity gap. Manufacturing, health, retail,
education and hospitality are all big employers in Dorset. 20,200 businesses are based in Dorset: 86% are micro
firms and fewer than 1% are large firms. Dorset has an estimated 147,000 employees supporting an economy
worth around £8.1 billon.
Earnings are below average and house prices are high with affordability issues for many young people and
keyworkers. In 2019, lower end house prices were more than 10 times higher than lower end earnings in Dorset.
Dorset has no motorway but over 2,500 miles of roads. 95.1% of premises in the Dorset Council area have access
to superfast broadband. 3.1% of premises in the Dorset Council area have access to full-fibre broadband. Mobile
connectivity is still a known issue and is being addressed by work on the 5G programme.
COVID-19 has had a major impact on the economy globally, nationally and in Dorset. Relative to the UK, Dorset
has higher shares of employment and businesses across the hardest hit sectors such as tourism and leisure.

Dorset Council
Dorset Council was formed as a unitary council on 1 April 2019, bringing six councils together into one. The
council has a workforce of approximately 4,500 employees (excluding school employees) and provides over 450
services.
Dorset Council aims to be customer focused, effective and modern, a sustainable organisation, and an employer
of choice.
We aim to be a key player in place shaping, working with communities, rather than doing to them or for them. We
believe in the importance of early intervention, helping people to support each other to avoid situations reaching
crisis point. We also aim to be fiscally disciplined through strong commissioning and procurement, and ambitious
in our use of assets, estate and capital to reduce the impact of demand for our services. We are an inclusive
council, working for everyone in our communities.

Page 11

3

Why effective communications with our residents is
important
The Local Government Association (LGA) and the Government Communication Service (GCS) advocate the need
for building trust among our residents in order to communicate effectively. We can build this trust by placing
residents at the heart of our thinking and engaging with them as part of our planning and delivery of services. Our
residents should know what services are available from the council, how to access them, and why we take the
decisions we need to. We also need to maintain our reputation with our workforce, partners, businesses and other
stakeholders.
National research conducted by IPSOS Mori on behalf of the LGA for its ‘Reputation’ campaign highlighted that
when people feel well informed by their council, they are also more satisfied with their council and the area where
they live, and they feel more involved and engaged in the council’s decision-making processes.
Understanding our residents, what their needs and expectations are, and making sure we communicate
effectively with them, is therefore a crucial activity for the council. Although the research showed that overall
perception is more important than actual quality of service as measured by traditional performance indicators,
this does not mean that communications can be a substitute for weak service delivery.
It means that solid council performance, and a clear system for explaining that performance to target audiences
is the key to raising satisfaction.
The following table shows the perceptions of Dorset Council residents compared to perceptions of residents
nationally.
2019 Dorset Council residents’
survey
Satisfaction with the local area
Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied
are you with your local area as a
place to live?

Oct 2019 LGA national residents’
survey

88% of respondents were satisfied
83%
with their local area as a place to live

Satisfaction with the way the council 61% of respondents were satisfied
runs things
with the way Dorset Council runs
Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied things
are you with the way Dorset Council
runs things?

63%

Feeling informed
Overall, how well informed do you
think Dorset Council keeps residents
about the services and benefits it
provides?

58% of respondents think Dorset
Council keeps residents well
informed

59%

Trust in council
How much do you trust Dorset
Council?

53% of respondents said that they
trust Dorset Council ‘a great deal’ or
‘a fair amount’

61%

Perceived value for money
To what extent do you agree or
disagree that Dorset Council
provides value for money?

39% of respondents agreed that
Dorset Council provides value for
money

49%

Page 12

4

Council responsiveness
To what extent do you think Dorset
Council acts on the concerns of local
residents?

42% of respondents think Dorset
Council acts on the concerns of
local residents ‘a great deal’ or a ‘fair
amount

59%

Speak positively
Would you speak positively or
negatively about Dorset Council?

30% of residents would speak
positively of Dorset Council

N/A

This shows that Dorset Council lags behind the national averages for trust in the council, perceived value for
money, and responsiveness.
Many different factors contribute to how residents perceive a council and the services it provides. The output
of the Communications Team can impact significantly on those public perceptions. By working with councillors,
senior officers, employees and partners to deliver this strategy over the next four years, our objective is to
improve the extent to which residents feel informed and engaged in the council’s work and thereby improve their
satisfaction with the council.

Corporate objectives
The Dorset Council Plan 2020-2024 sets out our ambitions for the next four years. Our vision is: Dorset – a great
place to live, work and visit.

Dorset Council’s corporate priorities are outlined in the Council Plan:
•

Economic growth

•

Unique environment

•

Suitable housing

•

Strong, healthy communities

•

Staying safe and well

Work to address the climate and ecological emergency is a cross-cutting theme across all these priorities.

Our values:
•

are an advocate for Dorset on a local, national and global stage

•

work together with our communities and our partners to make things happen

•

put people first and design services around their needs now and in future

•

are open, accessible and accountable

•

use time and money wisely

•

value people and build on their strengths.

Page 13

5

Communications objectives
•

build and maintain the council’s reputation

•

support achievement of the council’s strategic objectives (as outlined in the Council Plan)

•

build the council’s identity and engagement with employees, members, residents, partners and other
stakeholders

•

warn and inform during crisis situations.

In terms of SMART targets, we will use the results of the residents’ survey in 2019 as a benchmark and look
to improve all resident perceptions of the council. It is important to note that communications alone will have
a limited ability to change these perceptions. Perceptions are also based on personal experience of council
services and customer service, so we need to work together as one team across the council to improve residents’
experience in the round.

Our target audiences and how to reach them
We will improve how we target audiences through the use of segmentation, and tailoring channels, messaging
and creative approach to the needs of each segment. There are many ways of segmenting audiences. Some of
the variables are outlined below.

Residents - segmentation variables
Mosaic groups – the largest Mosaic* groups in Dorset are:

Margaret ‘country living’ (Mosaic group A) – 20% of Dorset households. Married and

in her sixties, living together with her husband in a comfortable detached house.

Communications preferences: Web (including using her smartphone) and telephone if
she can’t do what she needs to do online.

Rob ‘rural reality’ (Mosaic group G) – 16% of Dorset households. Rob lives in Maiden
Newton, West Dorset, is a mechanic, and is divorced with three children, one of school
age.
Communications preferences: Prefers face to face. Rob has a mobile phone but
generally uses his old computer at home to send out the occasional email.

*Mosaic is a consumer segmentation model, with 15 groups and 66 types that help to
understand an individual’s likely customer behaviour

Page 14

6

John ‘senior security’ (Mosaic group F) – 13% of Dorset households. Now a
comfortably off homeowner, enjoying life in his later years.

Communications preferences: Prefers to ring the council to the council and speak to a
“real” person but will write in if necessary.

Andrew ‘prestige positions’ (Mosaic group B) – 10% of Dorset households. Married
“empty nester” in his own house, living comfortably with an established professional job.
Communications preferences: Web (including from his smartphone).

Mildred ‘vintage values’ (Mosaic group N) – 8% of Dorset households. Pensioner

in later retirement years living on low income in social housing, reliant on the state to
maintain her quality of life.
Communications preferences: Over the years Mildred has always phoned or written to
the council. She also occasionally drops in. Phoning up is now her preferred way but
she finds the “press 1 for this and press 2 for that” frustrating and confusing.

Eesha ‘aspiring homemaker’ (Mosaic group H) – 8% of Dorset households. Married
and in her thirties, living together with her children in her own house (with a mortgage!)
Communications preferences: Web (including from her smartphone) and telephone if
she can’t do what she needs to do online.

Alicja ‘transient renter’ (Mosaic group L) – 3% of Dorset households. Single, 20, living
together with flatmates in a shared flat in Dorchester.

Communications preferences: Web, (mainly from her smartphone) but also uses social
media, particularly Instagram. Online lets her use Google translate if she doesn’t fully
understand.

Kelly ‘family basics’ (Mosaic group M) – 3% of Dorset households. Living together with
her new partner and children in a rented housing association property in Littlemoor.

Communications preferences: Mainly smartphone (and occasionally tablet) and only
telephone when she can’t do what she needs to do online.

Page 15

7

Digital segmentation
1)

The ‘digital natives’ – very digitally savvy. Don’t really want to talk to the council. Happy to self-serve
online. These are customers who want to use online services and so we should enable them to do so, end
to end.

2)

Not as digitally savvy and may need more confidence to do tasks online. We need to make the digital
offer attractive to them – make it so easy and convenient to use that they feel the benefits and it
becomes the preferred option

3)

Assisted self-service. 10-13% of residents don’t have the essential digital skills for life and work.
Some may have a mobile phone and be keen users of social media, for example, but no good at financial
transactions, downloading information or cyber security, say. Some of these people may have a fixed line
broadband connection at home but don’t make much use of it. We need to help them, and they will grow
in confidence over time.

4)

7-10% are completely offline and have never been online. Likely to need other non-digital channels.
May be reluctant to contact the council but are likely to need our help. Customers that either may never
be able to use and access our services or should never use online services due to the nature of their
query (e.g. vulnerable, homeless, need very expert service.)

Geographical segmentation
We can target residents according to where they live, using postcode targeting for social media campaigns,
email newsletters, digital advertising and mailings.

Other target audiences:
•

Dorset businesses

•

Visitors
largely the remit of Visit Dorset, a separate marketing team within Dorset Council which
focuses on promoting Dorset to visitors and supporting the leisure and tourism industry

•

Dorset MPs

•

Partner organisations:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

town and parish councils – and the DAPTC
blue light services: health, police, fire & rescue
voluntary and community sector
Dorset LEP, Chambers of Commerce, BIDs, etc.
neighbouring councils
sector organisations (LGA, SOLACE, APSE, etc.)
government bodies
schools and colleges
providers and suppliers

Page 16

8

Communications strategy and the role of the
Communications Team
Strategy: ‘how will we achieve our objectives?’
We propose that council communications are:
•

Strategic: communications must be involved in the council’s strategic planning from the very start to ensure
that all audiences and stakeholders are considered appropriately, and the strategic communications
objectives are identified.

•

Prioritised: aligned to Council Plan priorities to ensure we allocate appropriate resource to the most
important projects and campaigns with a ‘One Council’ approach. This means we will be more proactive,
and less reactive in our approach, based on strong forward planning and coordination. We will deliver fewer,
bigger, better campaigns that achieve specific measurable outcomes. In terms of lower priority work, we will
enable services to do more themselves.

•

Customer focused and accessible: improving our use of audience insight and reaching different audiences in
the ways that best meet their needs. We will ensure we use research and engagement to find out more about
our audiences, to listen to them, and to respond to their needs. All communications must be fully accessible.

•

Robustly evaluated: we will continually test, learn and improve our communications, and we will robustly
monitor, analyse and report on the outputs and outcomes achieved by communications activity so that we
know what we are achieving.

•

Delivered in partnership: we will join up messaging and campaigns across council services and with
partners wherever possible to amplify communications, achieving greater impact and using limited
resources effectively and efficiently.

•

Open, honest and transparent: we will communicate with our external audiences in a way that is open,
honest and transparent, providing clear, factual information that avoids ‘spin’. We will communicate with
audiences about democratic decision-making.

Tactics: ‘how will we implement our strategy?’
•

Tell our own story: we will focus on communicating our own narrative rather than letting the narrative
about Dorset Council and its services be led by others. This involves a more proactive, less reactive
approach. We will use a story-telling approach to engage audiences with compelling content featuring
human interest (such as frontline employees and local residents). We will produce more shareable
content including videos. We will have more two-way conversations with audiences. We will be brave and
creative in the communications we produce.

•

Raise awareness of the work of the council: we will deliver a constant drip-feed of communications across
all channels to showcase the day-to-day work of the council and how it is helping to improve residents’
lives. We will also help explain the reasons for and impacts of council decisions, projects and service
changes to those affected – linking this back to the overall corporate narrative. We will continue to use the
hashtag #WorkingforDorset

•

More targeted: we will increase our use of audience insight and segmentation to better target
communications activity so that it is as effective as possible. We will work with colleagues in Digital
and Customer Services to exploit the opportunities presented by the new digital platform, including improved
collection and use of customer data, better targeting, and better cross-promotion of services.

Page 17

9

•

Uniting people: wherever possible, we will focus on what unites rather than what divides them,
to support greater community cohesion in an accessible and inclusive way. We will ensure appropriate
representation of all members of our community in our communications. We will continue to use the
hashtag #DorsetTogether

•

Consistent branding, messaging and tone of voice: we will use consistent branding across everything we do
as a council to help raise awareness of what the council does, and, in turn, increase resident satisfaction
with the council. We will also ensure that as an organisation we speak with ‘one voice’.

The communications ‘offer’ – how we will work with council services
to achieve this
This is what the corporate communications team will deliver:
Strategic communications advice
Provided by the service manager and by the communications business partners, acting as trusted and expert
advisers to service leads and to councillors. By being involved upstream when new projects and service changes
are first considered, we will advise on reputational opportunities and risks. We will support senior leaders,
attending key internal management and political meetings.

Strategic and effective campaigns
Planning, delivery and evaluation to achieve outcomes in line with Council Plan priorities such as demand
management, income generation, behaviour change, etc.

Crisis communications
Supporting the council’s response to emergency incidents and acting as a member of the Dorset Local Resilience
Forum’s Warning & Informing group.

A range of communications channels
To reach the council’s various audiences and stakeholders, including systems and processes to manage those
channels. (See Core communication channels below). It is recommended that all advertising and communications
procurement is centralised across the council and delivered by the central communications team in order to
achieve economies of scale and efficiencies.

Support, advice and training
To facilitate self-service where appropriate e.g. with service-level newsletters, social media accounts,
engagement activities, etc.

A proactive and reactive media relations service to protect and enhance the council’s
reputation
Brand management, ensuring the council’s visual identity is used consistently and
appropriately
Graphic design (online and traditional) and print
Consultation advice, planning, delivery, analysis and reporting
Stakeholder and community engagement
With town and parish councils, the voluntary and community sector, minority communities, the armed forces, and
with Dorset MPs.

Page 18

10

Campaigns plan
The communications team will agree an annual plan of communications priorities and campaigns with Cabinet
members and with senior officers. This will inform the team’s work and resource allocation, and individuals’
performance objectives.
Any requests for communications support outside of the agreed priorities will need to be negotiated with the
communications service manager and business partners.

Proposed external communications campaign priorities 2020-21
PRIORITY CAMPAIGNS
Heavy-weight, integrated, multi-media campaigns – generally for a mass market
audience
•

Reaching out
Help people facing economic impact of COVID-19 to access support and avoid reaching crisis point

•

Fostering recruitment
Recruit more foster carers (generate enquiries)

•

Social worker and carer recruitment
Recruit more social workers and carers (generate applications)

•

Local Plan
Seek residents’ views and input in the Local Plan consultation and increase understanding of how Planning
works

•

Council budget
Raise awareness of how council funding is spent and what this provides

•

Climate emergency
Encourage people to contribute to the public consultation and to change their lifestyles in ways that reduce
carbon emissions

•

Children’s social worker recruitment
Recruit more social workers (generate applications)

•

COVID-19
Encourage compliance with public health guidelines to minimise spread of the virus

•

Assistive technology
Increase take up of assistive technology to support independent living at home

•

Direct payments
Increase take up of direct payments by social care service users

•

Census
Encourage residents to complete the national census

Page 19

11

ONGOING THEMES
Regular communications provided on these themes
EU transition
A Better Life (Adults transformation programme), including Building Better Lives
Economic development
Domestic abuse and safeguarding
OurDorset (partnership of health and social care organisations working together to deliver Integrated Care
Systems)
Homelessness and housing
Weymouth regeneration – inc. Weymouth harbour walls, North Quay, Weymouth Station Gateway project
Idling and safer crossings
Transforming Cities Fund
Winter weather and gritting
TIC consultation
Dinah’s Hollow
Council assets and properties

Day-to-day dripfeed of messaging
Via email newsletters, social media, Dorset Council News,
Highways maintenance
Changes to waste rounds
Environment work (e.g. verge cutting, weed spraying)
New building projects
Trading standards scam alerts
Flood protection advice

Self-service
Service to do own comms. Comms team support with advice, systems,
templates etc
Family Information Service newsletter
Low Carbon Dorset – promoting initiatives with businesses, etc.
Libraries
Leisure centres
Country parks

Core communication channels and activities
•

Dorset Council News magazine, delivered to all households in the Dorset Council area three times a year

•

E-newsletters available on a number of topics for people to subscribe to

•

Social media – Dorset Council presence on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn and YouTube. Exploring
opportunities with Snapchat and TikTok.

•

Website: www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

•

Media relations: proactive and reactive activity with local, regional, national, international and sector-specific
media

•

Advertising on radio, local press, online, vehicles, street dressing/out of home, and digital.

Page 20

12

•

‘Trusted voices’: sharing key messages via Dorset Council employees, councillors, and partners.

•

New channels – we are currently exploring opportunities for Dorset Council:
• Podcasts
• Online webinars and public Q&As
• Online radio show

•

Supporting the ‘Help and Kindness’ pilot to join up non digital channels across Dorset, involving local
communities.

Reporting and evaluation
•

We will produce a monthly performance dashboard: monitoring and reporting on effectiveness of different
communication channels.

•

Every campaign will have an evaluation report

•

Evaluation will include analysis of both outputs and outcomes of communications activity, and we will
ensure we continually learn in order to refine and improve our activity.

Page 21

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B

Media protocol for Dorset Council
This protocol is for Dorset Council employees and councillors working with the media. It outlines
the procedures that we will follow in a variety of situations and explains who should represent
the council in its media and public relations work.
The communications and engagement team leads on media relations for Dorset Council and
aims to:
 improve public understanding of the work of the council
 maintain positive and honest relations between the council and
the media
 manage all sensitive or contentious media issues in an open
manner
 provide support and give advice to employees and councillors.
The team also monitors and evaluates the effectiveness of media relations.
Roles and responsibilities
Councillors and employees (usually senior officers) are expected to act as spokespeople for
Dorset Council. As a rule, councillors will speak to the media on matters relating to council
policy, decision making, and local ward issues. Officers will comment on technical information or
operational matters.
All those acting as spokespeople for the council should have received media training and will
receive appropriate support and briefing from senior officers and the communications and
engagement team. If you or a member of your team need media training, contact the
communications and engagement team.


Councillors

Cabinet members, Lead members and chairs of committees should be briefed by relevant
officers and the communications and engagement team about controversial or high-profile
issues which attract, or are likely to attract, media attention.
Publicity produced by the council should be free from any political bias. This is outlined in the
Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity. Comments from councillors
speaking in their role as leaders of political parties are entirely a matter for them and members
of their group. It is not the council’s role to present conflicting political views.
However, the leader, chairman, cabinet members, lead members and committee chairs will
often be approached by the media, as representatives of Dorset Council, to comment on
corporate issues. Officers must make sure that councillors, if they wish so, are properly briefed
and guided on handling such enquiries.
The leader, relevant cabinet member or lead member should comment on corporate issues or
major directorate projects and committee chairs should comment on major committee decisions.


Local ward matters

A local ward councillor should have the opportunity to be quoted in a press release as a
community representative on a matter of particular local interest.

Page 23

Appendix B
Ward councillors may be approached directly by the media relating to issues within their ward.
It is acknowledged that ward councillors may liaise directly with the media on specific ward
issues, but they should make it clear that this is their personal view rather than the corporate
view of the council. Where engagement has taken place with the media, ward councillors are
requested to notify the communications and engagement team.
Officers


Chief executive and executive directors

They are responsible for endorsing and overseeing the protocol. They will lead by example,
responding positively wherever possible to requests for interviews or statements.
Executive directors are responsible for ensuring the protocol is followed in their directorates.
They liaise with the communications and engagement team, approving releases, statements
and giving interviews as required. They should inform the communications team about any highprofile or contentious issues, giving as much notice as possible.


Officers

Officers will assist the communications and engagement team in providing information for press
releases and statements, preferably in advance. Where appropriate, and with agreement from
the communications and engagement team, officers may also respond directly to enquiries and
supply factual information.
The communications and engagement team must be the first point of contact for all
media enquiries. If you receive a call directly from a journalist, please pass it to the
communications team.

Interviews
The council often receives requests for radio or television interviews. These may include early
breakfast radio slots and, occasionally, weekend or other out of office hours interviews.
We will always try to satisfy interview requests to make sure we remain open and transparent.
Where the publicity is about an operational or complex/technical matter it may be appropriate for
an officer to do the interview.
Officer spokespeople may be necessary where speed is of the essence to protect council
reputation or public safety, such as in a fast-moving emergency incident. The most appropriate
officer may also be used in difficult circumstances or to support the comments of a councillor.

Statements
The council regularly receives requests for statements on local, regional and national issues. It’s
important that we provide statements to make sure news about the council is fair, balanced and
accurate.
‘No comment’ is never acceptable. Even on the rare occasions when we really can’t say
anything, we must explain why.
Statements should not go out from a ‘council spokesperson’, as this reinforces perceptions of
councils as faceless organisations.

Page 24

Appendix B
If asked to provide information for, or approve, a statement, both officers and councillors should
respond by the end of the working day (unless otherwise agreed).
Final editorial sign-off will rest with the communications and engagement team, pending
approval from the relevant senior officer and councillor.

Press releases
A press release may highlight something positive, defend something controversial, explain a
complex issue, provide information or promote council activities and events. It should help
promote a better understanding of the council and must be free of any party-political bias.
All press releases must be issued by the communications and engagement team. Council press
releases will be emailed to all councillors, the relevant director, chief executive and customer
services teams for information.
Press releases should include a quote from a councillor, usually the relevant Portfolio Holder with the exception of those issued at very short notice, dealing with minor/routine council
business or in the run-up to elections.
Final editorial sign-off will rest with the communications and engagement team, pending
approval from the relevant senior officer and councillor.
Please give the communications team at least five working days’ notice of all requests for press
releases in order to guarantee timely distribution to the media. In cases where this notice is not
given then the team will have to assess workload prior to agreeing to support the project. There
are cases where support would always be given, such as an emergency incident.

Quotes from committee reports and meetings
It is common for journalists to quote from a public committee report and present this as a direct
quote from the officer who wrote the paper. The media may also attend a public meeting and
quote any council officer or councillor who speaks at that meeting. This is perfectly acceptable.
The communications and engagement team should be made aware at the earliest opportunity
of any committee reports that are likely to receive media interest.

The importance of being proactive
With most news outlets now using social media and posting news 24/7, it is even more
important that we publicise high-profile issues and respond to media enquiries as soon as
possible.
Good and timely media relations will help:





improve public understanding of the work of Dorset Council
provide a proper flow of public information
defend the council from unfounded criticism by ensuring people are presented with all
the relevant facts
help make sure press coverage about the council is fair, balanced and accurate

It is always best to plan ahead. If the council is on the back foot, a story can sometimes spiral
out of control and end up being distorted. This can often be avoided if facts are presented as

Page 25

Appendix B
quickly possible. The communications and engagement team can do this through a variety of
ways – including press releases, e-newsletters, videos and sharing content on social media and
our website.
The communications and engagement team must be informed at the earliest opportunity about
any potential high-profile or controversial issues to help prepare key messages and make sure
colleagues and councillors are informed.

Corrections
If the media has reported misleading or inaccurate information, then we may wish to raise this
with them. The communications and engagement team will advise on the best way to tackle the
issue.
As a general rule, the council will seek to correct inaccurate or misleading information published
in the press by means of a balancing or positive article. However, on occasion a letter to the
editor may be the best way to set the record straight. In these cases, the guidelines outlined
under ‘roles and responsibilities’ should be applied to determine the author and handled by the
communications and engagement team.

Online comments
Members of the public often comment on online news stories. We respect the views of all
people and recognise that comments can be made to represent all sides of the story and can be
made without possession of the full facts. We will only ask for a news outlet to consider
moderating comments if they are:
1. Considered libellous towards a councillor, officer or person acting on behalf of the council.
2. Considered abusive or threatening towards a named councillor, officer or person acting on
behalf of the council.
The communications and engagement team does not routinely monitor online comments, but
you can notify the team if you have a concern.

Photographs and video
When using photographs or video in any publicity, we must get written permission from the
person being photographed or filmed. An explanation of how the photos and/or footage will be
used should also be given.
However, you don’t have to gain the permission of each individual featured in photographs of
large groups (e.g. crowd scenes) or if they can’t be recognised (e.g. shots of the back of their
heads). However, consideration should be given to the use of such images in relation to
sensitive or potentially contentious issues.
Photographing/filming children should be handled with great care. Permission of a parent or
guardian must always be given beforehand, and explicit consent sought before publishing on
the internet.
The communications and engagement team can give you photograph/video consent forms and
provide you with further guidance.

Page 26

Appendix B

Pre-election period (also known as ‘purdah’)
During pre-election periods (the eight weeks immediately before an election), local authority
officers need to consider what they say and how they say it.
During this period the council cannot be seen to be influencing voters in any way through
publicity. Publicity is defined as "any communication, in whatever form, addressed to the public
at large or to a section of the public".
During purdah we must not:







produce publicity on matters which are politically controversial
make references to individual politicians or groups in press releases
arrange proactive media or events involving candidates
issue photographs which include candidates
supply council photographs or other materials to councillors or political group colleagues
unless you have verified that they will not be used for campaigning purposes
use councillors in news releases and events in pre-election periods

We are allowed to:




publish factual information to counteract misleading or controversial information
use relevant lead officers, rather than councillors, for press releases
use a politician who is involved in an election when the council is required to respond
particular circumstances, such as in an emergency situation or where there is a genuine
need for a member-level response to an important event beyond the council's control.

Contact the communications and engagement team
The communications and engagement team manage media relations for Dorset Council and
can provide you with advice and support.
They must be the first point of contact for all media enquiries and are also responsible for
issuing all official press releases and statements to the media.
Comms email: comms@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Comms phone number: 01305 858233
In the case of an out-of-hours emergency, call 07776 660986.

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee
16 November 2021
Social Mobility in Dorset
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr S Flower, Leader of the Council

Local Councillor(s):

All

Executive Director:

J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place

Report Author: James Roberts
Title: Research Officer
Tel: 01305 224579
Email: James.Roberts@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
That the Scrutiny Committee;
i)
Note the evidence attached regarding social mobility in Dorset.
ii)
Identify any recommendations to Cabinet for further work to improve
social mobility in Dorset.
Reason for Recommendation:
To ensure the council is being evidence led in its response to social mobility and
the barriers and challenges experienced by residents.
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

On the 3 August 2021 all councillors were invited to a seminar on tackling
inequalities. One of the outputs from those discussions identified by
Senior Leadership was for a report to be prepared for this committee on
what this council is doing to improve social mobility in Dorset, and identify
any gaps or where more work could or needs to be done.

Page 29

1.2

In 2017 the Social Mobility Commission reported that Weymouth and
Portland was the 3rd worst local authority in the country for social mobility.

1.3

In 2018 The House of Commons Library research service, using the same
methodology as the Social Mobility Commission, released a briefing paper
which found that the South Dorset parliamentary constituency was the
worst for social mobility, out of 533 constituencies in England.

1.4

Against the backdrop of poor social mobility came the Covid-19 pandemic
which has a significant impact. The Sutton Trust, in their report titled ‘lost
learning, lost earning’ said that “school closures (during the pandemic) are
likely to have substantial negative labour market impacts for those from
less-well off groups, their chances of social mobility, and on the economy
in general.” The updated Corporate Plan puts renewed emphasis on the
importance of helping Dorset’s children to recover from the pandemic.
Improving education is one of the key factors in improving social mobility.

2.

Financial Implications

None in relation to this report. Improved social mobility has benefits including a
higher skilled workforce, earning better wages, improving the local economy and
increasing the tax take. Secondary benefits include better public health reducing
the need for expensive interventions.

3.

Well-being and Health Implications

Poor health has been linked to poor educational outcomes, reduced
development, and ultimately, worse social mobility. Increased social mobility will
have beneficial implications for public health.
4.

Climate implications

No direct implications.
5.

Other Implications

As explained above, the updated Corporate Plan puts renewed emphasis on the
importance of helping Dorset’s children to recover from the pandemic. Improving
education is one of the key factors in improving social mobility.

Page 30

6.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Medium
Residual Risk: Medium
7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Not required.
8.

Appendices
1. Key recommendations for local government

9.

Background Papers
1. Institute for Employment Studies/Salvation Army report
https://www.employment-studies.co.uk/resource/understanding-peopleunderstanding-places
2. UK Prosperity Index 2021 https://li.com/reports/uk-prosperity-index-2021/
3. Members’ seminar slides
4. Early Help Outcomes and Impact Statement

10.

Background and context

10.1

On the 3 August 2021 all Members were invited to a seminar on tackling
inequalities. One of the recommendations that followed from those
discussions was for a report to be prepared for this committee on what this
council is doing to improve social mobility.

10.2

In their 2019 manifesto, the government committed to ‘levelling up’ every
part of the UK. This was in response to a long-known issue with regional
disparities which the Institute for Fiscal Studies found was greater than in
most comparable countries. This led to the launch of the Levelling Up fund
in March 2021.

Page 31

10.3

The Levelling Up Fund methodology has faced considerable scrutiny since
it was released for a number of reasons. One key issue identified early on
by this council was the decision to evaluate ‘need’ at the local authority
level. Dorset Council as a whole is not particularly deprived, but this hides
the fact that within the area are some of the most deprived
neighbourhoods in the country. This message had been relayed to our
MPs in the hope that they will lobby ministers to rethink the way the
funding is prioritised. We are not alone in this – organisations like The
Salvation Army and The Young Foundation have raised the same issue.

10.4

Dorset Council submitted a bid to the Levelling Up Fund for £17 million.
The bid has two elements, the regeneration of Weymouth town centre and
the regeneration of the harbourside.
Unfortunately, the bid was not selected in the latest round of bids on the
27th October. The Levelling Up White Paper to be published later this year
will set out further detail on the government’s plans in this area – in
relation to further opportunities and through the Shared Prosperity Fund.

10.5

On the 19 September 2021 the government announced that:
“The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government will
become the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities as
the Government delivers on its central mission to level up every part of the
UK.”
The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP becomes the Secretary of State for
Levelling Up, while former Bank of England Chief Economist Andy
Haldane is the new Head of the Levelling Up Taskforce. Changes at
national level present potential opportunities for the council to work with
MPs and government to lobby for Dorset.

10.6

From March 2020 the government provided an uplift of £20 a week to
those in receipt of Universal Credit. This is due to end by 6 October 2021.
This will have a significant impact on Dorset’s most vulnerable residents
and particularly children and young people.

10.7

Devolution has seen some powers passed from central government to
regions and city mayors. Metro Mayors in parts of England (and the Mayor
of London) hold executive powers over spatial planning, regional
transport, the provision of skills training, business support services, and
economic development. Champions of social mobility, like the Social

Page 32

Mobility Commission have long argued that more powers should be
devolved to the regions to allow more flexibility in how the money is spent.

11.

Social mobility in Dorset

11.1

Social mobility is the movement of individuals, families, or groups through
a system of social hierarchy. This can be movement upwards as well as
downwards. ‘Good’ social mobility is facilitating this movement or,
removing any barriers that may be preventing people from moving through
the social hierarchy.

11.2

What does good social mobility look like? Much of the literature around
social mobility focusses on education, good quality jobs, particularly jobs
which have a career ladder and social protections to give a helping hand
to those who are struggling. Areas with the highest social mobility combine
access, quality and equity in education, while also providing work
opportunities and good working conditions, alongside quality social
protection and inclusive institutions (World Economic Forum).

11.3

Research over the course of the pandemic has shown that existing
inequalities defined by income, place, health and ethnicity have been
exacerbated. The Sutton Trust’s report ‘Lost Learning, Lost Earnings’
found that “school closures (during the pandemic) are likely to have
substantial negative labour market impacts for those from less-well off
groups, their chances of social mobility, and on the economy in general.”

11.4

In 2018 the council’s Research Team carried out a detailed analysis of
social mobility across Dorset, using the Social Mobility Commission’s
national analysis as a basis. The Commission had found that out of 324
local authority areas in England, Weymouth and Portland ranked 322. The
poor ranking was primarily down to children from deprived families
attending inadequately rated primary and secondary schools, poor KS2
attainment, poor ‘points score entry’ for A-Levels and the proportion of the
working age population earning below the ‘real living wage’.

11.5

The other District areas in Dorset performed much better than Weymouth
and Portland although none ranked near the top. Of the former districts
that make up the Dorset Council area, East Dorset ranked highest at 147.

Page 33

11.6

Dorset as a whole (including Christchurch) scored below the national
average for nursery & primary Ofsted ratings, KS2 achievement, points
score entry for A-levels and earnings.

11.7

There are currently no secondary schools in Weymouth and Portland
rated ‘good’ by Ofsted. The four schools, All Saints' Church of England
Academy, Wey Valley, Budmouth Academy and Atlantic Academy are
currently awaiting inspection.

11.8

A thriving economy attracting employers who provide well-paid jobs is vital
to improving social mobility. The UK Prosperity Index 2021 ranked Dorset
94th out of 379 local authority areas. Dorset, however, ranks very poorly
for infrastructure (359th) and below average for economic quality,
enterprise conditions and social capital.

11.9

The UK Prosperity Index uses Pembrokeshire County Council’s ‘Kickstart
Scheme’ as an example of a project to get young people into work. The
scheme provides funding to employers to create job placements for 16- to
24-year-olds, which they suggest could act as a blueprint for other local
authorities.

11.10 The Social Mobility Commission’s recommendations for local authorities
include raising aspirations of young people, building a sense of belonging
and forming positive connections through local leadership and strong
school–community links, improving transport links and increasing pay for
the low paid. An improved sense of belonging alongside strong school–
community links are attributed to the dramatically improved social mobility
seen in many London Boroughs in the last 20 years (along with increased
funding for the capital’s schools).
Recommendations
11.11. The Social Mobility report makes a series of recommendations for
councils, set out below with a summary of similar local action underway
and possible additional action that could be considered. As an update the
UK Prosperity Index 2021 report was recently published and highlights
additional areas for which Dorset scored poorly that could be considered
for action. These are included in italics below.

Page 34

Appendix 1
Key recommendations for local
government
Improve infrastructure, including:
 Transport: quality, diversity, and
penetration of road and rail
transport within a local authority,
as well as access to key transport
hubs.
 Communications: internet speed
and how widespread access to
superfast internet is.

Local action already underway and additional actions for consideration
Infrastructure plans relating specifically to Weymouth and Portland will inform
development of the Stronger Neighbourhoods (SN) strategy as well as its
delivery,
Ever faster fixed and mobile broadband delivered by a series of programmes
and projects to complement market-based delivery. Current Dorset Rural 5G
projects exploring use in agritech and offshore applications, building on
facilities at Council-owned Dorset Innovation Park.

Page 35

One of 6 priorities in our 3 year Children, Young People and Families Plan is
“Delivering Locally”. The main intended outcome is that families are able to
benefit from local services, whether those services are delivered face-to-face
in the communities they live in or accessible virtually.
Examples of Achievements of the Delivering Locally Plan in the first year:
-

-

-

children’s services locality teams working together, across disciplines,
to wrap services around children, young people and families
(approach praised in Ofsted inspection due to evidence of impact on
outcomes for children)
strengthened / created Local Alliances (groups made up of
representatives from key partner agencies in each of our localities,
including parents, carers and young people as well as Voluntary and
Community Partners)
each alliance has established local priorities and plans, to be
delivered through steering groups

-

-

in Weymouth and Portland, linked to the Stronger Neighbourhoods
Project to influence planning and delivery
established the local authority Early Help offer for families, linking with
local community members to deliver services for children, young
people and their families
created / strengthened virtual and face-to-face support for families,
responding to Covid guidance
sustained safe face-to-face services with children, young people and
families

Next steps:

Page 36

-to understand gaps in access to services due to transport and
infrastructure;
- to understand where digital access is restricted
Ensure locality plans help to address transport and digital access; linking to
wider, strategic plans to improve access to services.
Improve economic quality, including:
 Productivity
 Dynamism: business churn.
 Labour force engagement
 Fiscal sustainability (of the local
authority).
 Macroeconomic stability: GVA
growth, inactivity shocks,
economic shrinkage, SME
growth.

Economic regeneration plans and pieces of work relating specifically to
Weymouth and Portland will inform development of the SN strategy as well
as its delivery.
The SN strategy will work alongside economic regeneration activity in
Weymouth and Portland, making good use of connections and links for the
benefit of other aspect of the councils work and service provision in the local
area.
Both LEP -level economic strategy (Strategic Economic Plan, Local Industrial
Strategy, Dorset investment prospectus) and council level strategy (Dorset

Council Plan, DC Economic Growth Strategy) are focused on increasing
productivity through high quality jobs, particularly in key sectors.
Dorset Innovation Park is designed to create a cluster of advanced
engineering, defence, and security businesses. The nearly-complete MOD
innovation Battle Lab will be a catalyst for future growth. The submitted
Levelling Up Fund round 1 bid includes provision for a second battle lab on
Portland.
In our Local Alliance Groups we have set a priority to engage and work with
local employers to:

Page 37

-

Enable and support parents and carers and young people into work
Influence locality plans and play a role in supporting children and
young people to aspire to work and live in Dorset

We would also like to use our direct engagement with community members
to inform economic strategy.
Improve enterprise conditions, including:
 Business environment: Property
costs, compliance, local
government restrictions.
 Domestic Market Contestability:
how open the market is to new
participants vs. incumbents.
 Labour Market Flexibility: how
dynamic and flexible the
workplace is for both employer
and employee.

The Growth and Economic Regeneration function at the council is in the
process of a redesign to better serve these needs. The Local Development
Order simplifies planning at the Dorset Innovation Park while Enterprise
Zone status reduces business rates for new tenants. The Inward Investment
team helps businesses source suitable employment space. Since much of
Dorset is designated AONB there are significant planning constraints in
many rural areas.
As part of our commitment to “whole family working” we have sustained links
with employment advisors (Department for Work and Pensions). Our
practitioners sustain focus on economic wellbeing for families. This includes

Page 38

Improve social capital, including:
 Family relationships.
 Civic and Social Participation:
through volunteering, donating
money, and local meeting places
such as pubs and sports clubs.
 Institutional Trust: courts and
Parliament.
 Social Networks: ties that an
individual has with people in their
wider network.
 Personal Support: support that
individuals feel from their
community.

access to employment. We work with Family Learning to develop relevant
learning opportunities for family members.
Issues relating to social capital will form a significant core to the work of SN,
and activities relating specifically to Weymouth and Portland will inform
development of the SN strategy as well as its delivery,
SN aims to take a whole council approach to strengthen whole communities
and social networks, support and facilitate real civic and social engagement,
working with whole families, and recognising supporting individuals in the
context of their whole lives.
In Children’s Services our priority is to keep children with their families and,
where this is not possible, to keep them close to home so they can sustain
connection and relationships with family and friends. We are creating new
children’s homes in Weymouth and have invested in special provision for
children with Special Educational Needs.
Our locality model enables us to respond to the unique needs of each place
and to connect to the local context our children grow up in. We are
committed to an asset-based community development approach; to
harnessing community assets to build on local resilience and local solutions.
We are working with Help and Kindness to build on the great achievements
of the volunteer network, built through the pandemic.
We link to existing agencies working to enhance social capital such as credit
unions, projects that provide local solutions to food poverty and
organisations that offer positive activities to support good health.
Our early help model in children’s services supports families through 4 levels
of work: information, advice and guidance (linking families to existing

community or online support); group work (working with cohorts of children,
young people, parents and carers to enhance health and wellbeing; fami ly
work (working predominantly in family homes, drawing on multi-agency and
community support to improve outcomes for children. Our practitioners also
help and support others to initiate or sustain effective models of help such as
“Team Around the Family”.
We aspire to develop Family Hubs that are:

Page 39
 Every local authority should develop
an integrated strategy for improving
disadvantaged children’s outcomes.
This should include:
o quality improvement support for
early education settings, including
collaborative working groups,
tailored advice and comprehensive
training for early years teachers



Intergenerational



Interoperable



Integrated with partners



Resident friendly



Local



Incorporating touchdown and meeting venues for staff

Improving outcomes for disadvantaged children relating specifically to
Weymouth and Portland will inform development of the SN strategy as well
as its delivery,
We support schools and early years settings to work collaboratively to
ensure children experience belonging in an educational setting and to ensure
they share best practice. Each locality team includes:
- Specialist Teachers who help schools support pupils with specific needs

o driving uptake of the early education
offer for disadvantaged two-yearolds and ensuring that they do not
lose places to children eligible for
the 30-hour offer − ensuring that all
parenting support programmes are
evidence based and experimenting
with ways to offer effective advice to
more parents.

Page 40

 Early education and childcare
providers should invest pupil premium
funds in evidence-based practice using
the Early Education Foundation’s
toolkit.

- Education Challenge Leads who support schools with sustaining inclusive
and diverse curriculum and with quality improvement
- Early Years Support and Advice officers who support early years providers
in the same way
- Inclusion Leads who work with schools to ensure children are well
supported in educational settings and enabled to access the curriculum.
Inclusion Leads work to prevent children experiencing fixed term or
permanent exclusion.
A strong focus in our Children, Young People and Families Plan – working
with the LGA for a 10 year plan and working on implementation of a PAUSE
programme.
We are making good progress in delivering our Sufficiency Strategy and the
quality of early years provision is high (99% good or above)
We have a good understanding of the issues and challenges faced by the
sector through regular surveys and conversations enabling us to:
Offer appropriate support including additional financial support to

settings at risk of closure (over £190k to support sustainability).
Understand take-up of places and possible future demand

Take-up of early years places has increased from 1,153 children in

Feb 2021 to 8,151 at the end of the summer term
As a result of our concerns for those children (particularly around speech
and language development) who are due to transfer to school but may not
have accessed early education for the past 12 months we secured additional
investment which has delivered:
161 children accessed over 7,000 hours of additional free early

education to help boost their development



The roll-out of the WELCOM programme to all settings, so that
children are given the help they need to catch up and targeted of support
to those settings who identify children with a language delay
We are working with CCG colleagues to jointly commission a new

model of Speech and Language support and we have increased our
investment this year
We operate a Golden Ticket system whereby families eligible for early years
education for children and 2 years receive a golden ticket to exchange for
sessions with a local provider. Our uptake of early years funding is above
national average.

Page 41

Our parent support offer is delivered both virtually and online by qualified and
accredited practitioners in evidence-based practice. It is co-ordinated across
the county and has reached over 200 parents and carers since April 2021
and supports parents and carers of children of all ages, including teenagers.



Local authorities should support
collaboration between isolated
schools, subsidise transport for
disadvantaged young people in
isolated areas and encourage Local
Enterprise Partnerships (LEP) to follow
the North East LEP’s approach to
improving careers support for young
people

We are developing a robust workforce development offer for our early years
workforce, drawing on the expertise of colleagues in health, education, social
care and early help.
Work to improve careers support and work readiness for young people
relating specifically to Weymouth and Portland will inform development of the
SN strategy as well as its delivery
Career support is provided through the Careers and enterprise company and
join working across Economic Development and Children,s Services teams.
We have recently TUPED staff from Ansbury Guidance to enable our young
people to be supported into employment through our teams.

Our Education Challenge Leads work with schools, including primaries, to
focus on education and employment opportunities and careers advice for
young people. This has been achieved through linking with national and local
projects. We would like to enhance this work further.
• Schools should work with local
employers to meet the key Gatsby
careers support benchmarks (a set of
critical careers support requirements
based on international standards) and
to ensure that all young people are
well prepared for work.

Page 42



Local government should develop
shorter-term action plans with
employers, educators, universities and
other key local stakeholders to improve
opportunities for local disadvantaged
people.

Dorset Council is part of the Dorset Careers hub which is supporting all
schools and colleges to deliver their statutory requirements relating to
careers (including Gatsby Benchmarks). Every term all schools and colleges
performance is measured by dedicated staff against these standard
benchmarks by Dorset Council in partnership with other stakeholders.

Strategies employed to improve opportunities for disadvantaged children
relating specifically to Weymouth and Portland will inform development of the
SN strategy as well as its delivery
The Economic Growth Strategy acknowledges the need to update plans
more frequently than usual especially considering the effects of Brexit and
Covid. Work on the accompanying Action Plan was paused as the team
shifted to delivering the “saving lives” action of pandemic response and
recovery, including distributing £13 million in loans to micro and small
businesses. Work will recommence shortly.
The ICS Health Inequalities programme in Dorset is leading the development
of an Anchor Institutions network to support partner organisations in
progressing this agenda. Colleagues in Dorset Council see this as an
opportunity to work with partners on a number of key policy areas such as
opportunities for localising procurement, raising aspirations of local residents
to seek careers in our larger public sector organisations (and in particular
looking to provide apprenticeship opportunities for those young people

Local authorities should all become
accredited Living Wage employers and
encourage others in their communities
to do likewise

furthest from employment readiness) and also to promote staff volunteering
to enable the Council to better understand the communities we serve.
Dorset Council uses national pay scales. The lowest rate is currently
£9.25/hour, slightly below the on-statutory “Real living wage” of £9.50 /hour.
Dorset Council Terms and conditions for holiday, sick pay, pension etc are
significantly above the statutory minima.



Local government leaders should put
social mobility at the heart of economic
and educational development and take
coordinated action to tackle the social
mobility challenges of their areas by
each developing a ten-year social
mobility strategy with clear
progress measures. This should
include a focus on improving transport
links to social mobility hotspots in rural
and coastal areas.

Developments designed to increase social mobility relating specifically to
Weymouth and Portland will inform development of the SN strategy as well
as its delivery
DCs corporate priorities of inclusive economic growth, suitable housing,
strong, healthy communities, and staying safe and well all contribute to
improving social mobility.
DCs two recent bids to the Levelling Up Fund were entirely focused on
Weymouth and Portland, one improving sustainable transport links around
the station, the other regenerating derelict brownfield sites on or near the
waterside.
Reducing health inequality is also a key driver of Public Health Dorset’s
activities.



Local government should develop a
new deal with employers and
educators for inclusive employment,
based on jointly agreed local social
mobility action plans, using the Social
Mobility Employer Index as a
framework for employer action.



Page 43

While there is significant work to better connect education and skills
provision to employment demand, especially for higher quality jobs, this is
not done within the context of a social mobility plan at present.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities implications have been considered and any
information relevant to the decision is included within the report.

Page 44

Agenda Item 8

Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee
16 November 2021
Former St Mary’s School in Shaftesbury
Acquisition
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr A Parry, Children, Education, Skills and Early Help

Local Councillor(s):
Executive Director:

T Leavy, Executive Director of People - Children

Report Author:
Title:
Tel:
Email:

Vik Verma
Corporate Director for Education & Learning
01305 224683
vik.verma@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
That the committee note the information provided in this report.
Reason for Recommendation:
This report provides an overview of the acquisition of the former St Mary’s School
site, near Shaftesbury, to become the Dorset Centre of Excellence, which is to be
a 280 place Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) school.
1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

Executive Summary
On the 8th December 2020 Dorset Council Cabinet considered the
Business Case to approve the final bid to acquire land and property and
assets at the former St Mary’s School site in Shaftesbury, moving to
exchange and complete on the purchase assuming the final bid was
accepted by the Administrators for the former school.
The Dorset Council Cabinet report sought agreement to conduct a
statutory consultation on a range of options for the use of the site, to
include but not be limited to educational provision.
Following this consultation, a revised business case was considered by
Cabinet at their meeting on 29 th April 2021, which, taking into account the
outcome of the consultation, considered the use of the site as an

Page 45

independent special school for children and young people of Dorset and
the longer-term vision.
2.
2.1

Financial Implications
Included in the exempt Cabinet report for the meeting on the 8 th December
2020 was a reference to a budget requirement needed to purchase the
site and then undertake works to make it compliant and suitable for use as
educational provision that is compliant with Ofsted requirements.

3.
3.1

Well-being and Health Implications
Not used

4.
4.1

Climate implications
The buildings date from the late 19th century to the 21st century, however
despite appearances, it is not a historic building. There are a considerable
number of modern classroom buildings which are more energy efficient.
The site aims to operate in an economic and carbon efficient way, using
low carbon fuels and self-sufficient methods of heating and lighting. In
addition, the site is self-sufficient in terms of water provision.
A benefit of increasing specialist school provision for Dorset children will
be a reduction in the distances children and young people travel both
within and out of county to receive similar provision elsewhere.

4.2

4.3

5.
5.1

Risk Assessment
Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk
has been identified as:
Current Risk: Medium
Residual Risk: Medium

6.
6.1

Equalities Impact Assessment
Equalities Impact Assessments were undertaken for the Dorset Council
Cabinet reports.

7.
7.1

Appendices
None,

8.
8.1

Background Papers
Cabinet 8 December 2020 – Provision for Dorset Children – Business
case.
Cabinet, 29 April 2021 – St Mary’s Shaftesbury.

8.2
9.
9.1

Background
The exempt Cabinet paper reviewed in December 2020, set out options
for use of the former St Mary’s school site, including the councils preferred
option (subject to consultation) of the establishment of an Independent
Special School.

Page 46

9.2

The other options for use of the site identified at that time were –
 Centre for Respite Care, alternative support and provision of
accommodation.
 Training and Conference Suite leased to single corporate tenant.
 Lease to an Independent Special School provider to operate.
 Innovation Centre for STEM start-up businesses.

9.3

The consultation exercise took place between 4 February 2021 and 18
March 2021 and in total received 1,427 responses. Over 90% of those
were from residents within the Dorset Council area. The outcome of that
consultation exercise was reported to Cabinet at their meeting on 29 April
2021, who provided approval to proceed with the Council’s preferred
option for the use of the site.
Contained in the revised Business Case which was presented in April
2021, was the preferred option to establish an independent 4-19 school for
Dorset children and young people with SEND, alongside a wider vision for
the use of the St Mary’s site as a Centre of Excellence.
The development of the Centre of Excellence would support the council in
delivering a benefit to the Dorset community through learning and the
promotion of healthy living, and also to act as a beacon in terms of a
national centre of learning for professionals working with vulnerable
children and young people. The chart below shows the principles of what
is intended to be provided on the site.

9.4

9.5

Page 47

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Progress to date
Alongside ongoing works to ensure that the buildings are safe to use, the
development and use of facilities needs to be phased over first three years
of operation in terms of the school provision alongside the vision to create
the Centre of Excellence.
As part of the due diligence process when the bid was being formed to
purchase the site a high-level condition survey was undertaken by an
independent surveying company to identify any significant works which
were required to the buildings on the site. The financial outcome of that
survey was included in the initial report to Cabinet in December 2020 and
highlighted several items which required attention.
One of the most crucial matters which needed to be addressed was the
electrical safety certification for the site. Prior to the completion of the
purchase an electrical test was undertaken, and a certificate was issued.
However, to ensure the electrical system on site is suitable for the
intended use moving forward, work has been ongoing since June to
upgrade the system and continues at present on a block by block basis.
To create the right environment for specialist teaching, three blocks on the
site were identified to be used as the first phase of the school and works
commenced as to how they needed to be re-configured for use.
Consideration was given to how the site as a whole would operate in
terms of traffic flows and site security, in order to ensure there was an
appropriate and safeguarded learning environment in line with Ofsted
requirements.
Initially it was felt that the work required to make the school suitable for
SEND use would be procured through the Repair and Maintenance Minor
and Small Capital Works (RMMSCW) framework. Once a more detailed
review of requirements was undertaken, a procurement route including a
tender exercise was required from the contractors on the framework to be
able to appoint a preferred contractor based on a not to exceed cost. The
procurement activity added at one month to the programme timeline.
Following the procurement process a contractor was formally appointed
and they began the detailed design process. The main contract cost for
the first phase of the school refurbishment has now been provided at a
maximum cost of £1.4m. This covers the refurbishment and re-modelling
of three blocks on the site as well as works to refurbish the dining area
and this work is now underway.
Whilst the works focus on the accommodation required for school use,
other works have been on going on the site since the summer 2021 with
the ongoing electrical re-wire, the refurbishment of two of the houses on
site for use potential use as care provision, and roof repairs.
Works have also been authorised to install a CCTV and intruder alarm
systems, to install fencing to secure parts of the site more appropriately for
school use.
The works to create suitable accommodation for the first phase of school
use is currently due to be completed in February 2022. This delayed

Page 48

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15
11.
11.1

completion is due to a number of issues related to Covid restrictions
earlier in the process as well as the industry supply and labour issues
which are being felt in the construction industry at the current time. Every
effort has been made to reduce any delays.
It is expected that works will be completed in order to allow the school to
open after February half term, on the basis that it has been registered with
Ofsted by that time. DfE registration is a prerequisite of being able to
operate the school on site.
Costs associated with works on the site are monitored closely and are
signed off in consultation with the Dorset Centre of Excellence
Commissioning Group, Executive Director for Place and the Executive
Director for People – Children. In the December 2020 Cabinet report a
budget allocation of £15m was allocated to this project, to include the
purchase price for the site, and to date costs of works undertaken or
committed to are contained within this amount. Work is now starting to
look at the next phase of works including the need to bring the rest of the
accommodation required for the school in to use ready for September
2022, as well as developing the Dorset Centre of Excellence training
facility.
Assets and Property also engaged in detailed discussions with the former
schools Administrators over the heating system on the site, which was not
part of the initial site purchase costs due to the contractual arrangements
in place with the former school and their previous energy supply company
who owned the equipment on the site. Assessments are currently
underway to look at the condition of the equipment, which includes the
biomass boilers and the solar farm. As the costs to replace or purchase
the current heating system were not included in the initial budget allocation
it may be necessary to seek additional funding in due course in order to
ensure there is an adequate and appropriate heating system on the site.
The condition of the buildings on the site will require ongoing maintenance
and whilst the lease arrangements which will be put in to place with the
Dorset Centre of Excellence as the operator of the site on behalf of the
Council, there will still be ongoing liabilities which will rest with the Council
as landlord, and a budget allocation is being sought to ensure those
liabilities will be able to be met going forward.
The council has established a wholly owned company to operate the site,
as agreed in the cabinet decision. This company is operational and
working alongside council services to ensure delivery of the full business
plan.
The company is currently recruiting the staff required to open the school.
Conclusion
The proposal to purchase the former St Mary’s site was developed in
order to help reduce the overspend on the High Needs Block and to
rapidly improve the quality of provision closer to Dorset for children and

Page 49

11.2
11.3

11.4

11.5

young people who require SEND support in line with the Council’s
approved SEND Capital Strategy 2020-25.
This project is part of a wider strategy to invest in and expand specialist
provision across Dorset.
The delayed timescale to enable to school to open to its first cohort of
students is somewhat offset by the indicative cost and time it may have
taken to acquire a site and build a new school of a comparable size, with
comparable facilities. In addition, the school will be able to grow faster
than originally projected meaning no detriment to the cost savings
anticipated.
The indicative investment of £20m for a new school including the time
needed to identify and acquire land can still be seen to have offered the
most cost-effective solution to meet this need.
It is anticipated that the first pupils will be on site after February 2022.

Page 50

Agenda Item 9
Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee
16th November 2021
Dorset Council Climate and Ecological
Emergency Strategy – Progress report
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr R Bryan, Highways, Travel and Environment

Local Councillor(s):

County Wide

Executive Director:

J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place

Report Author: Antony Littlechild
Title: Climate & Ecological Emergency Strategy – Draft
Tel: 01305 224802
Email: antony.littlechild@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
To note and review progress made in delivering the Dorset Council Climate and
Ecological Emergency Strategy and Action Plan as will be published in the public
facing progress report.
Reason for Recommendation:
In line with recommendation of Scrutiny Committee of 12 th May 2021 that the
Committee would provide oversight against progress and delivery of the Strategy
and Action Plan via six monthly progress reports.
1.
1.1

Executive Summary
Dorset Council declared a Climate & Ecological Emergency in 2019 and
following public consultation a Strategy and Action plan to make Dorset
Council Carbon Neutral by 2040 and the wider Dorset Council Area by
2050 were adopted by full Council on 15th July 2021

Page 51

1.2

As part of the adoption of the Strategy and Action Plan it was agreed that
Dorset Council would commit to producing two public facing reports per
year, giving an overview of progress against the strategy and action plan
which would be presented to the Scrutiny Committee prior to publication
alongside additional details as to the every developing and changing
external circumstances that will influence the progress and direction of the
Strategy and Action Plan.

1.3

The first public progress report (Appendix A) highlights that action is
underway across all areas of the strategy and that major progress has
been made in reducing the Councils carbon emissions since the base year
of 2019/20.

1.4

It also notes that the COVID pandemic has had a significant influence on
many of the savings seen, such as major reductions in staff travel. The
key challenge will be to lock in some of the working practices and maintain
the urgency of delivery across Council services and in partnership across
the County to ensure carbon reduction stays on track.

1.5

This report provides further detail against the key areas for action
identified in the strategy and builds upon the information provided in the
public facing report with details of key challenges and next steps.

2.

Financial Implications

2.1

A costed action plan presented to Cabinet, 6th October
2020, highlighted many initial actions could be taken forward with existing
resources but significant additional revenue and capital would be required
to deliver the strategy over its life time to ensure action continues with the
urgency required and carbon reduction targets are achieved in a timely
manner.

2.2

Dorset Council and partners have been extremely successful at drawing in
significant external funds to support delivery of the strategy objectives,
including £19 million in grant funding from the Governments Public Sector
Decarbonisation Scheme and the Low Carbon Skills Fund,

3.

Well-being and Health Implications

3.1

There are no specific health and well being implications of this report.
However, the Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy highlights that

Page 52

the impacts of climate change poses numerous health and wellbeing risks
to the residents of Dorset and these need to be significant consideration in
the mitigation and adaptation to climate change. The strategy also
highlights that effective delivery of the action plan will have wider health
and well being co-benefits, such as improved air quality, healthy diets,
improved access to high quality natural environment and active travel to
name but a few.
4.

Climate implications

4.1

The specific purpose of this report and the strategy is to present Dorset
Councils overall approach to the climate and ecological emergency. The
overall principle behind the strategy is to set out key areas where Dorset
Council will need to take action to directly reduce carbon emissions from
its own operations to become a carbon neutral Council by 2040 and by
working in partnership to help Dorset residents and organisations achieve
a wider carbon neutral Dorset County by 2050. This report provides the
first progress report in delivery of the strategy.

5.

Other Implications

5.1

There are no specific other implications for this report. As previously
noted, the strategy and action plan itself has wide ranging implication,
opportunities and benefits in the way the council delivers services and
works with others across the County. Tackling the climate and Ecological
Emergency are a key part of the sustainability agenda.

6.

Risk Assessment

6.1

Having considered the risks associated with this report, the level of risk
has been identified as:
Current Risk: High

6.2

Due to the known high level of public interest in the Climate Change
Agenda and the previous commitment to provide the public with a biannual progress report to not do should be considered a HIGH
reputational risk to Dorset Council
Residual Risk: Low

Page 53

6.3

The publication of the public facing report is in line with commitments
made and shows a significant level of progress in reducing the carbon
emission of Dorset Council.

7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

7.1

Specific EqIA’s will be developed against relevant actions as required. The
publication of the public facing progress report will be undertaken against
established and agreed communication equality principles.

8.

Appendices


Appendix A - DRAFT (pre graphic design) Dorset Council Climate and
Ecological Emergency Strategy – Progress Report - Autumn 2021



Dorset Council Climate Emergency Strategy and action plans –
www.dorsetforyou/climate

9.

Background Papers

9.1

Dorset Council declared a climate and ecological emergency in May 2019
and established an Executive Advisory Panel to oversee the development
of the Councils approach. Following consultation Dorset Council climate
and Ecological Emergency Strategy and action plan was adopted by Full
Council on 15th July 2021. Dorset Council agreed to monitor performance
against the strategy and action plan and report to the public twice a year.

9.2

The first public facing progress report is attached at Appendix A. It aims to
provide a concise summary of progress in the delivery of the strategy, but
particularly focuses on progress towards our carbon emission targets over
the past year and highlights some key pieces of work underway to deliver
the strategy.

9.3

The report will be available to the public via the Councils climate
emergency webpages and will be subject of a targeted social media
campaign and press releases. This report does not cover everything, but
provides a snapshot. In addition to the progress report further case studies
and video clips will also become available to provide more detail to the
summary report. These will be updated on an on-going basis as they
become available.

Page 54

9.4

Many other areas of work are underway across the Council and wider
Dorset which contribute to delivering the strategies objectives and action
plan. More of these will feature in future editions. The next report will be
published in Spring 2022, highlighting further progress, and focusing on
the year to come.

10.

Performance against carbon targets

10.1

Dorset Council Carbon Emissions have been estimated to have fallen by
17% in 2020/21, well in excess of the 8% year on year budget to reach
Carbon Neutral by 2040.

10.2

The biggest reductions were in Business Mileage (-60%) and Commuting
(-50%) both of which were in a large part caused by the effects of Covid
pandemic and impact of lockdown. This also explains the increases in
emissions from Fleet Fuel (+17%) and Dorset Travel Fuel (+14%) brought
about by the requirement to provide socially distanced transport
arrangements.

10.3

The challenge to lock in the Covid related reductions will be greatly
assisted by the initiatives that Dorset Council are implementing around
new ways of working.

10.4

It is considered that the Covid pandemic had a more limited influence on
other Carbon reductions which should be primarily attributed to ongoing
Council initiatives.

10.5

Accurate data is less available for the wider Dorset Area but Carbon
emissions across the wider Dorset Council area are considered to have
reduced by approx.. 6% between 2017 and 2019. Whilst significant this
falls below the required reduction of 9% to stay within the Carbon budget
and on course for Carbon Neutrality by 2050. Dorset Council is
responsible for and therefore has direct control over only 1-2% of the
overall Carbon emissions from the Dorset Area and reducing the area
wide emissions presents challenges in terms of indirect action and
influencing behaviour.

11.

Buildings & Assets

Key Challenges

Page 55






The pandemic caused significant disruption to the delivery of energy
saving measures in 2020.
In March 2020 all work ceased as contractors shut down and visits to
premises were prohibited.
No effective promotional campaigns could be conducted, and installations
dried up.
Currently severe shortages of manpower and materials in the sector and
installation costs are known to be rising steeply.

Next Steps





12.

The Council has a new contractor in place to deliver Healthy Homes
Dorset and has begun targeted marketing of residents to inform them of
the opportunities for funding energy saving improvements to their homes.
The Council will be bidding for more money from government to provide
enhanced Green Homes Grants (LAD3) in Dorset.
The Council has entered a bidding competition for more money from
Government to roll out targeted enforcement of landlords renting poorly
heated or insulated properties.

Business and Economy.

Key challenges







There is no budget or dedicated staff resource (i.e. a sustainable tourism
officer) to continue or grow a green tourism project. The work currently
carried out is part of the general work of Visit Dorset.
The tourism industry has been hit by covid, and businesses are now
focussed on recovery and keeping their businesses afloat.
The provision of public transport in Dorset makes it difficult to travel
sustainably round Dorset
There is a lack of information for tourist businesses about how green
credentials might help in terms of increased income.

Page 56

Next Steps












13.

The Great South West partnership have put together “Towards 2030”
outlining green tourism projects that could be implemented should funding
become available. This includes becoming zero carbon, calculating the
footprint of the tourism industry in the south west, building resilience and
improving productivity through addressing seasonality. This a £10 million
oven ready project.
If resources were available, next steps could include working with council
colleagues and other partners to hold further business webinars on
reducing food waste, becoming plastic free, reducing general waste,
sourcing local produce, marketing green tourism.
Dorset could aim to be officially recognised as a sustainable destination.
Others have achieved this but it's not just about tourism businesses, it's
what transport is available, recycling and waste management, planning
policy for how and what buildings are made of, local food and drink
production, renewable energy etc.
Visit Dorset also aims to carry out visitor and business surveys to gain
baseline data regarding the current level of sustainable tourism in Dorset.
If funding was available, Visit Dorset could approach Bournemouth
University regarding calculating the carbon footprint of tourism in Dorset.
This would give a starting point to know how much carbon needs to be
reduced or off-set to become zero carbon by 2050. Plymouth University
did something similar in 2016 for the South West.
The Council is commissioning additional evidence to provide an update on
the employment /retail space needs of the area to consider the likely
impacts of Brexit the Covid-19 pandemic and the shift to online retail. The
results of this evidence will be fed into to the next stages of the Local Plan.
Renewable Energy

Key Challenges





Need for public-sector projects to be innovative in order to be eligible for
support within the Low Carbon Dorset (LCD) programme. Extremely
difficult to justify spending on higher risk projects at such a time of
financial constraints
Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund - Some pipeline public-sector projects
did not progress to a grant application with LCD as they were able to
access 100% funding from the Public-Sector Decarbonisation Fund. The
fact that the Decarbonisation Fund is 100% public funded – rather than

Page 57



requiring match funding like the LCD programme – proved more attractive
to some of our expected projects.
The key challenge for delivery moving forward is funding.

Next Steps







14.

The LCD team is currently helping develop some major low-carbon
projects in the county, including but not confined to:
a £6m green hydrogen project in east Dorset
a £500K solar PV project
LCD very close to having fully allocated £5.6m grant pot –now prioritising
those in key sectors (social housing, public sector) to meet those targets.
Applications for support are now being added to a waiting list – and will be
notified if/when any additional funds become available (ie. If a contracted
project falls through or comes in under budget, or if funding is secured
from an alternative source). We currently have over 160 potential projects
seeking support who are yet to receive a grant from the programme.

Natural Assets

Key Challenges




Public appreciation/understanding of new cut and collect verge
management techniques – comms have been working very hard on this.
The conflicting demands for new developments and protecting the
environment

Next Steps








Tree planting for Jubilee – both directly as DC and also assisting and
facilitating a number of Town and Parish Councils
Agree position regarding planning gains for ecological benefits and
approach to management of new land, results to be fed into the local plan
Begin in house carbon soil testing on verges now managed by cut and
collect to monitor changes in soil carbon
Rights of Way Improvement Plan to be complete and launched
The Council has commissioned ecological surveys of sites proposed for
allocation in the Local plan
Establish a baseline and set targets for improvement

Page 58

15.

Transport & Travel

Key Challenges











Maximising the opportunities and gains that Covid-19 has provided in
travel reductions
Work on Dorset Council’s travel plan was disrupted by the pandemic,
which would impacts on research/surveys already undertaken
When Schools returned in September, many more vehicles were needed
to accommodate social distancing and school bubbles
Accommodating the limitations imposed by COVID on our various
transport services
Keeping our operators financially afloat whilst transport services were not
running. Despite this support, many operators are struggling to invest in
newer, cleaner vehicles and there is a national shortage of drivers for both
large and small vehicles
Trails of electric vehicles restricted to Dorchester area due to existing
infrastructure (most charging points being at County Hall),
The range of electric vehicles during winter months can half when lights,
windscreen wipers, demisters and heaters are used.
Additional cost of
o Electric vehicles over their fossil fuel equivalents
o upgrading existing infrastructure at depots
o upskilling colleagues engaged in maintaining vehicles.

Next Steps











Further work to reduce business mileage and maximise use of digital
technology to enable home working.
Looking to capture staff use of public transport through our business
mileage claim system.
Roll out the Marginal Gains App to a wider audience for a limited defined
period & extrapolate the data for a clearer picture of the cost/ time and
carbon savings to the whole authority (rather than just one service).
A key element within our Bus Service Improvement Plan for the years
ahead will be a reduction in carbon emissions from transport – eg by
encouraging more use of public transport, moving towards cleaner engine
technology and reducing the need to travel.
A further ten fast charging (22kW) sockets and a single rapid (50kw)
charger are being installed at four sites.
A further £500k of private sector and Government investment is planned
for 2021-22.
Continue to develop network and roll out next phases of chargers.
Further development of pipeline schemes.

Page 59





















Delivery of early Active Travel Fund schemes,
Continued delivery of TCF schemes,
Bidding through capability fund capital and any other available
opportunities.
Funding being sought for further delivery of bike share schemes in larger
settlements
Hanson are aiming to demonstrate a “world first” net zero kiln fuel mix,
using hydrogen and biomass, by the end of 2021.
RAP inclusion in primary surfacing supplies is targeted to increase over
coming years due to the equipment improvements made at the production
plant.
low energy asphalt was formerly limited to the bottom and middle level of
road surfaces, however from July 2020, its use was gradually introduced
to surface course as confidence increases. This will increase the
proportion of low energy asphalt compared to conventional hot surfacing.
Hanson have brought in the first all-electric van on their site fleet, which
will be delivered to the cycleway scheme at Leigh Road, Wimborne in the
near future, where its use will be monitored closely, with a view to
introducing electric vehicles to other sites in future where viable. Dorset
Highways are following suit and are about to install charging infrastructure
at Bridport Highways Depot and are looking to lease or purchase a new
electric van for one of our Site Agents. Again, the plan is to roll this out for
other staff such as Community Highways Officers in future.
Monitoring driver’s behaviours to ensure that drivers avoid harsh
acceleration and braking, unnecessary idling when a vehicle is stationary
and that the speed limit is not exceeded.
Services to review their vehicle usage and eliminate any unnecessary
travel.
Review the provision of vehicles for employees to use to and from work to
assess the opportunity to reduce the numbers of vehicles that the Council
operates.
Look to seek additional funding to electrify the fleet.
Work with EV charging point colleagues to progress the electrification of
the fleet
Redistribute the Pool fleet across the county to make it more accessible to
non-Dorchester based colleagues.
Continue to investigate other renewable energy such as Hydrogen for the
use in large goods vehicles.
Network/pool resources with other local authorities and agencies such as
BCP.
Introduce HVO as an alternative to diesel as an interim measure to help
the transition from a fossil fuelled fleet to an alternatively fuelled fleet

Page 60

16.

Waste

Key Challenges





As well as preventing further work taking place, Covid lockdown changed
waste arising from Dorset Council buildings significantly, therefore audits
would not have served their purpose.
Household waste growth has increased due to Covid and everyone
working from home. Kerbside collected residual waste has increased by
5.66%
The team have been unable to conduct some of their usual promotional
activities due to Covid, e.g. door knocking, roadshows, promotional
events, school visits, community talks, etc.

Next Steps





17.

Secure budget to enable audits and develop waste reduction plans
Continue to implement various campaigns across Dorset to encourage
residents to reduce, reuse and recycle as much of their waste as
possible.
We will continue to closely monitor developments to ensure these
changes are adhered to and implemented in Dorset.
Water

Key Challenges










Resources to take pro-active action
Accessibility to sites over pandemic period
Abnormal water consumption levels and patterns caused by pandemic,
making establishment of normal consumption levels difficult
As the scale and ambition of the community has evolved, the project team
has remained the same. To help deliver more for the communities along
the River Asker, and to spread the approach to others within the West
Dorset Rivers and Coastal Streams area, it would have been helpful to
have a dedicated project coordinator.
The River Asker project started out as a short-term pilot to see if it is an
effective model for delivery. Its success has resulted in growing
expectations. We have been fortunate with securing funding to allow
ongoing delivery but to effectively deliver into the future, better forward
planning is required.
The impact of restrictions caused by the coronavirus pandemic has meant
that very little has been achieved on the ground in the last year. We

Page 61







paused activity at an early stage in the proceedings and have not had the
opportunity to return to normal yet.
Incorporate future climate change scenarios into our planning application
responses; this may have an economic impact on developers and property
owners.
Continuing to respond in a timely manner to increasing numbers of major
development planning consultations.
Tight timescales for delivering a sound flood risk evidence base for the
Local Plan.
The effects of sea level rise and the need for new/improved flood
defences in areas sensitive to this.
Unknown severity of impact on flooding & coastal erosion of climate
change in the future.

Next Steps









18.

To secure more funding, not only for the River Asker Community Project,
but to allow Dorset Wild Rivers to effectively deliver the Community-led
approach in the River Char catchment and others throughout Dorset.
Continue monitoring water consumption & identifying high usage
Evaluate feasibility of automatic water consumption monitoring in key
locations
More frequent and focussed maintenance activities on critical drainage
systems (mainly highway drains and public sewers) to help reduce flood
risk.
Develop a sound evidence base in support of the new Local Plan.
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment is underway to assess flood risk across
the council area, results to be fed into the next stages of the plan
production.
Ongoing internal/external consultation with flood risk authorities on the
proposed allocations within the plan, to further identify and understand
mitigation for flood risk issues.
Making it happen

Key Challenges




Embedding in DC culture
Scale and complexity

Next Steps



Currently trialling use of our impact tool for wider role out through decision
making and project development

Page 62








Embed Climate change strategy objectives into all transformation work
stream
Further develop our carbon footprint and Performance indicators for
Ecology
Forge links and strengthen links with external organisations and partners
Continue to seek and bid of external funds
Develop Internal Governance structure to ensure delivery and
development of the strategy and action plan in the long term.
Develop finance strategy to support delivery of the climate change
strategy.

19.

Conclusion

19.1

The collection, analysis and production of the first annual Carbon
Emission data set against a qualifiable baseline marks a major milestone
in the evolution and delivery of the Dorset Council Climate and Ecological
Strategy and Action Plan delivery has is the culmination of a large quantity
of work.

19.2

Dorset Council have actively and successfully persuaded a number of high
profile technological and financial opportunities and moving forward will
proactively manage the delivery of the Strategy and Action Plan to ensure
all future opportunities are acted upon.

19.3

The results of the data analysis show that Dorset Council is delivering in
line with the Strategy and Action Plan and current reductions are above
target. Whilst it should be recognised that the impact of the pandemic has
influenced the performance it must also be noted it has shown what
positive change is possible and be considered as a series of opportunities
to lock in the savings moving forward through changes in working
practices and organisational culture.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

DRAFT

Page 65

Page | 1

Introduction
In 2019, the newly formed Dorset Council declared a Climate and Ecological Emergency,
acknowledging the Council needs to act on the causes and impacts of climate change and protect
and enhance Dorset’s environment and wildlife. We consulted with the public on a draft Climate and
Ecological Emergency Strategy and Dorset Council adopted the Strategy and Action Plan in July 2021.
This first progress report focuses on action we have taken towards achieving our carbon emission
targets over the past year as well as highlighting some of the key pieces of work underway to deliver
the strategy. Case studies and video clips will also be available on-line over the coming months to
provide ongoing updates.
This report does not cover everything! It aims to be concise and provide a snapshot. Many other
areas of work are underway across the Council and wider Dorset which contribute to delivering the
strategies objectives and action plan. More of these will feature in future editions. The next report
will be published in Spring 2022, highlighting further progress, and focusing on the year to come.

An extra ordinary year
One of the biggest challenges over the last 18 months has been the continuing global
Coronavirus pandemic. This has resulted in slower than anticipated action in some areas of
the strategy but changes how we deliver services and how we all work which has had a
significant impact on our carbon foot print.
We have travelled much less, did not used our buildings as much, undertook less capital
works, learnt how to use technology in new ways and we have all had a chance to re -connect
a little more with nature and our local surroundings and changed many of our daily habits.
Conversely, we have had to provide extra services to help keep people safe and respond to
the pandemic, such as additional school transport.

Dorset Council Emissions
Dorset Council only has direct control over the carbon emissions
produced from its own operations and this will be a key focus of
our initial activities.
Our baseline for 2019/20 was at about 31,000 Tonnes CO2 e .

How did we do last year ?

In 2020/21 our carbon emissions reduced by
approximately 17% to 25,867 tonnes CO2e

9/20

Page 66

Page | 1

Blue line – pl a nned

Dorset Council Carbon Emissons Pathway

tra jectory to ca rbon neutral
counci l by 2040

35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000
5000
0
19/2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040

- actual emissions

Where have the savings come from?
Carbon Foot print area

Difference

Performance

Buildings - Energy

-21%

😊

Buildings - Water

-19%

😊

Streetlights & Intelligent transport systems

-22%

😊

Highways materials

-33%

😊

Fleet fuel

+17%

☹

Dorset Travel Fuel

+14%

☹

Business mileage

-60%

😊

Commuting

-50%

😊

Waste

-35%

😊

What this has shown is what is possible in a short time, particularly through using buildings
differently, working more from home and using technology to travel less. We understand that
means some emissions may now be generated in homes where they weren’t before , but we are yet
to decide on an approach that can account for this.
One of the biggest challenges for us and many other organisations will be to lock in some of these
positive working practices while returning to normal service delivery. There is an obvious danger of
bounce back which must be avoided where we can.

Page 67

Page | 2

Dorset Area Emissions
Dorset Council only accounts for approximately 2% of the County’s carbon footprint and has limited
impact on the county-wide emissions but can influence and support where we can.

Baseline emissions for Dorset where 1.759 million tonnes of CO2e in 20171
How has Dorset done so far?
The latest government data for Dorset2 shows that Dorset emissions reduced to 1.662 million tonnes
of CO2e by 2019, equivalent to a 6 % reduction from 20173 .
However, this reduction is below the target of 9% and means at this rate we would use our total
carbon budget for Dorset by 2034.

Emissions Pathways
Annual Carbon Footprint (tCO2e/yr)

3,000,000
2,500,000

2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000

500,000
2000

2005

2010

2015

2020

2025

2030

2035

2040

2045

Trajectory to date

TARGET Budget: Climate Change Act 1.5 deg

Projection BAU

BAU Budget CCA 1.5 deg

2050

1

UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 -2018
UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 -2019
3 Baseline Year
2

Page 68

Page | 3

Buildings & Assets
Reducing energy use and increasing use of renewable energy in buildings & other assets is the single
largest part of the both the Council and county-wide carbon footprint and one of the most
challenging areas requiring significant investment by organisations and individuals across Dorset.
Energy use in Dorset Council buildings has shown a 21% reduction in energy use between 2019/20
and 2020/21 resulting in a saving of 2,100 tCO2e .
Carbon emissions from domestic buildings in Dorset reduced by 3% between 2017 & 2019. We are
commissioning a building condition survey in 2021/22 which will give a better picture of housing
across Dorset.

Decarbonising our Estate
In early 2021 we secured £19 million from Central Government ‘Low Carbon Skills Fund (LCSF)’ and
‘Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS)’ to support a major energy reduction and renewable
energy programme across a number of buildings to include offices, care homes, schools and leisure
centres. Projects include – installing heat pump systems, replacing any remaining oil boilers with
heat pumps, improving building fabric, installing LEDs, and installing Solar Panels. In addition, we will
be upgrading the energy management systems on each of these sites site and many more to ensure
energy is managed effectively.

Dorset Homes
Healthy Homes Dorset (www.healthyhomesdorset.org.uk) continues to help residents keep warm by
providing energy advice and financial assistance to improve the energy efficiency of their homes.
Residents have saved about 97.75 tCO2 e and £42,612 through our grant funded energy efficiency
activities and we are seeking further government funds to strengthen this work as well as enhancing
our enforcement activities to ensure landlords improve the energy performance of rented property.

Business and Economy
Since 2017 carbon emissions from industrial and commercial activity in Dorset have reduced by
6% and 14% respectively.

Low Carbon Dorset programme
Launched in 2018, this multi-million-pound EU funded programme provides free technical support
and grants to organisations across the whole of Dorset, to identify and develop energy efficiency and
renewable energy projects.
In 2020 we secured an additional £4.8 million pounds to extend the programme to 2023. To date the
programme has helped over 500 businesses and awarded 142 grants to support £5.4m worth of lowcarbon projects saving 5,342 tonnes of CO2e.
Our ever growing range of case studies can be found at www.lowcarbondorset.org.uk/case-studies/.

Green Tourism
Work has started with Visit Dorset to develop online resources and information to help tourism
businesses to reduce their carbon footprint, this includes a new webpage and an Eco-friendly Dorset
section. Visit Dorset also collaborated with the Energy Saving Trust and Bournemouth, Christchurch

Page 69

Page | 4

and Poole (BCP) Council to run 2 webinars for tourism businesses on switching from petrol/diesel
vehicles to electric and installing electric car charging points.

Sustainable Food and Drink
We continue to work with partners to support Dorset’s food economy and encourage local and
sustainable produce. In 2021 Dorset Food and Drink (now an independent Community Interest
Company) delivered a series of mini pop-up markets in Dorchester, Weymouth and Bovington to
support local producers and help recovery from impacts of COVID on this sector. They also worked
with Arts Reach on the Grow Local, Grow Vocal project, commissioning the poem Dairy Cows &
Dorset Knobs (Link) by a local artist to promote local and sustainable food.
The Dorset Coast Forum have been working closely with producers, policy makers and regulators to
support the development of a sustainable Aquaculture sector in Dorset and have recently secured
funds to carry out an economic study on the sector in England and develop a robust business model
for an English Aquaculture Innovation Hub in Dorset. www.dorsetaquaculture.co.uk and (Link) .

Renewable Energy
There is now nearly 420 Mega Watts4 (MW) of installed renewable energy capacity in the Dorset and
BCP area. The majority of this is solar but other technologies include small wind, small hydro,
anaerobic digestion and land fill gas. In 2019 Dorset and BCP local renewable energy sites generated
484 Giga Watt hours (GWh) of renewable electricity equivalent to just under 4% of Dorset & BCP
total energy demand. There is another 246MW (mostly solar) currently in the planning system that
may be installed in the coming years.
The Low Carbon Dorset Programme has supported the installation of 4MW of renewable energy
capacity on organisations across Dorset. To include 34 Solar PV installations, 3 Battery Storage
Projects, 14 Heat Pumps, and 2 Biomass Boilers. A number of larger renewable energy installations
are in the pipeline for installation before the end of 2022.
An initial wind mapping exercise was undertaken for Dorset to inform the draft local plan.

Natural Assets
Battery Powered Front Line tools
Our Grounds teams, Ranger Teams and Arboriculture Teams are now all using battery powered front
line tools, powered by our own solar panels. Each year this should save approximately 8,000 litres of
2 stroke fuel, £10,000 in cost and 19 tCO2e as well as having a range of noise reduction and health
and safety benefits.

4

Dorset & BCP Draft 2021 Net Zero energy dashboard by Regen,2021

Page 70

Page | 5

Verges for Wildlife
As part of Dorset Council’s pollinator action plan, we are
using methods to protect, conserve and enhance highway
verges and other green spaces. This has included
purchasing 2 more cut and collect machines which will
benefit an additional 350,000 m2 of highway verge and
amenity spaces. The work will improve biodiversity,
reduce costs and save carbon from reduced cutting by
diesel powered machines.
Dorset Council’s #LoveYourVerge campaign (Love Your
Verge - YouTube) is a countywide collaboration between the council’s Greenspace Service and Litter
Free Dorset. To promote verges that enhance ecology.

Reducing chemical use
Following a review of Glyphosate usage. Glyphosate will now only be used as management tool for
highway verges as per the council’s statutory duty to maintain pavements and other hard surfaces. A
‘hedge to hedge’ review panel is being established to look at the strategic management of highway
assets which will include methods to limit or eliminate chemical use.

Tree Policy
Dorset Council has changed its policy to ensure that for every tree felled instead of just one, two will
be planted.

BBQ campaign
In order to protect wildlife and ecology in Dorset, we have banned
the use BBQs and fires at all of our country parks, and land that is
deemed to be a high fire risk. Litter Free Dorset is also working
with shops and supermarkets to encourage them to remove
disposable BBQ’s from high fire risk areas.

Protecting Landscapes
The Dorset AONB team have secured over £1.3million over 3 years for a ‘Farming and Protected
Landscapes’ project. Which will provide funding to support projects to manage land for nature,
climate, people and place (Link).

Transport & Travel
A massive reduction in travel
The pandemic has fundamentally changed the way we travel . Business travel has reduced by
60% to 1,614,487 miles and we estimate staff commuted less than half as much in 2020/21,
down to below 4 million miles a year.
Together this has saved an estimated 2,644 tCO2e .
Our challenge will be to ensure these ways of working continue as much as possible as we recover
from the pandemic. Work is already underway to develop a Dorset Council’s travel plan, which will
aim to lock in more sustainable ways of travelling.

Page 71

Page | 6

Measuring the benefits
A ‘Marginal Gains App’ was designed by Hanson 5 and Dorset Highways to capture specific details
about the cost, carbon and time savings resulting from working from home due to the Covid
pandemic. Using the App, the highways team recorded savings6 of over 78,000 business miles and
8.5 tonnes CO2 (equivalent to 239 days energy usage for an average family home or flying on a
jumbo jet for 16 minutes) as well as saving over 1,960 return journeys and 1,441 commutes
resulting in time cost savings of over £23,000 and an additional 10 tonnes of CO2 emissions saved.

Changing Travel Needs
In contrast, estimated fleet fuel use increased by 22% to 2,237,640 litres in 2020/21. This is thought
to be in part due to errors in the baseline data and potentially more travel due to emergency
support requirements during the pandemic. A transition to an EV fleet over the coming years will
aim to reduce the climate impact from our fleet.
Carbon emissions also increased 14% from Dorset Travel in the last year. Despite schools being
closed during lockdown there was still school transport operating as well as public bus services
operating at reduced capacity. When the new academic year restarted there was a need to
introduce duplicate buses to support individual school bubbles. This greatly increased the numbers
of vehicles in circulation.

Electric Charging Infrastructure
The limited charging infrastructure in Dorset has historically be a one
of the constraints for the uptake of electric vehicles (EVs). In the last
year we have invested £400k in EV charging. In collaboration with
partners, Dorset Council have successfully installed 26 fast charging
(22kW) sockets in twelve locations. Five existing rapid chargers
(50kW) have also been replaced with new rapid charge points.

Dorset Council public charge points have saved 4,770 kg CO2e since
the first ones went live in February 2021.

Streetlights and Intelligent Transport Systems
In March 2020 our streetlight provider completed a £1m project to replace over 3,500 of biggest
lights with LED, this means the electricity used by our streetlights has reduced by 15%, resulting in a
carbon savings of 616 tCO2e . We have recently secured £390k to upgrade another 1,500 streetlights
to LED next year. Upgrading our intelligent transport systems has resulted in a further reduction of
4%, saving 64 tCO2e .

5
6

Our highways materials manufacturer
data represents the savings made between November and June within the Highways team.

Page 72

Page | 7

Greener Highways
In 2020/21 highways materials used reduced 30% , saving 1,305
tCO2e . The amount of asphalt used is dependent upon the budget
and the forward programme of works, but is also likely reduced due
to the pandemic and measures to re-use materials.
We use between 10% and 30% RAP (Recycled Asphalt Planings) and
6,126 tonnes (up from 2,668 tonnes the previous year) of our own
recycled surfacing. This reduces our carbon footprint as lorries do
not have to travel to source primary materials.
We introduced Low Energy Asphalt to all resurfacing schemes, and
as a surface course on new construction projects such as cycleways
from April 2020. Low energy (warm) asphalt is produced at 30 to 40
degrees lower temperature compared to conventional (hot)
material, and saves 15% in carbon emissions (Link)

Waste
Carbon emissions from Dorset Council office waste has reduced from 141 tCO2e in 2019/20 to 92
tCO2e in 2020/21, largely due to less staff being in the office over the past year.
Dorset Council collects in the region on 180,000 tonnes waste annually. 60% of this waste is reused
recycled or composted. This places Dorset Council as one of the best local authorities nationally.
Reusing, recycling and composting waste has a much greater carbon benefit compared to
incineration or landfill. This success has been recognised by the Eunomia Recycling Carbon Index
ranking Dorset within the top 10% of all local authorities for the past seven years.

Managing organic waste
We are promoting the ‘food waste feeds climate change’ campaign and undertaking trials for the
provision of free and subsidised food caddy liners to encourage residents to reduce food waste in
the rubbish bin.
All of Dorset’s household organic waste is now treated within the county using anaerobic digestion,
a wood biomass plant, and windrow composting.

Real nappies
Parents can apply online for a £30 voucher towards the cost of their reusable nappies and a
discounted nappy starter pack which is offered by local nappy retailers.

Engagement on waste
We have escalated our engagement on waste using social media and providing online school
assemblies and classroom sessions during the Covid pandemic, virtual talks/presentations to
numerous community groups have also been made to encourage residents to reduce, reuse and
recycle.

Page 73

Page | 8

Improving facilities
We have improved 100 communal sites (sites with shared bin facility locations) to increase the
quality of waste recycled and avoid contamination and disposal .

Re-use
A new project officer is in place to explore the development of repair cafes and library of things.

Water
Water use has reduced by 19% across the Dorset Council Estate from 242,316 m3 to 196, 375m3 in
2020/21. Most of this reduction is due to people working from home over the pandemic period.

Water protection
Dorset AONB, Farming & Wildlife Advisory Group (FWAG SW) and Dorset Wildlife Trust (DWT) have
worked in partnership over the past three years to support a community-led approach on the River
Asker, which is currently a failing river under the Water Framework Directive. This involves working
with partners and communities to clear invasive weeds, install natural flood management and 1.4km
of habitat improvements.

Flood management
The number of recorded flood incidents in Dorset rose by over 240% from 30 records in 2019 to 104
in 2020. This year we have carried out two significant flood investigations for Dorchester and
Broadmayne, developed flood risk policy & Sustainable Drainage System guidance for the draft
Dorset Council Local Plan and introduced a number of Natural Flood Management interventions
(‘slowing the flow’) in the Upper Piddle catchment.

Making it Happen
A key part of the Climate and Ecological Strategy and Action Plan is to ensure the impact on climate
and ecology are embedded in everything we do and the way we deliver services.

Monitoring and Reporting
We have improved our baseline emissions and integrated monitoring and reporting on climate
change indicators within our corporate performance process. This report is the first bi-annual public
progress report.

Embedding the strategy
As key strategies and plans are being developed, we are working to ensure climate and ecological
objectives are being fully considered, this has included the Councils Corporate Plan, draft Local Plan
and asset management plan. A draft climate & ecology impact tool has been developed and is being
trialled to ensure key decisions take account of climate and ecological objectives.

Securing Funding
Over £63 million in external fund has been secured to start decarbonisation of our estate, support
organisations in Dorset to develop low carbon projects through Low Carbon Dorse programme, work
with BCP Council to develop sustainable transport infrastructure in Eastern Dorset, expand EV
charging infrastructure and improve energy efficiency of homes and streetlights in Dorset.

Page 74

Page | 9

Communications and Engagement
A range of internal briefings, seminars and webinars have been undertaken to engage staff and
ensure we are all aware of the need for action and how services across the Council can contribute.
As part of developing the strategy, we engaged with town and parish councils and young people and
held a public call for ideas which received 738 ideas for action. Consultation on the draft Climate
Change Strategy and Action Plan received over 1,500 respondents and over 12,000 text comments,
leading to Adoption in July 2021.

Page 75

Page | 10

Page 76

Page | 1

Place and Resources Scrutiny Committee – DRAFT Forward Plan

Page 77

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

External
Communications
Strategy

Review of strategy
post-implementation.
A report to explain
Dorset Council’s
External
Communications
Strategy &
performance.

16
November
2021

Chairman of
committee

Jen Lowis –
Service Manager
for
Communications
& Engagement

Cllr Spencer
Flower Leader of the
Council

St Mary’s Acquisition

A report on the
16
acquisition of St Mary’s November
to create a new special 2021
school and centre of
excellence

Vik Verma –
Corporate
Director for
Education &
Learning

Vik Verma –
Corporate
Director for
Education &
Learning

Cllr Andrew
Parry –
Children,
Education,
Skills & Early
Help
Cllr Tony
Ferrari –
Economic
Growth,
Assets &
Property
Cllr Gary
Suttle –
Finance,
Commercial &
Capital
Strategy

Paul Scothern –
Service Manager,
Investment &
Development

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

Agenda Item 11

Title

Page 78

Title

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Performance Scrutiny

To review the most
recent performance
information and use
this to agree items to
add to the committee
forward plan for further
analysis

16
November
2021

David Bonner
– Service
Manager – BI
&
Performance

David Bonner –
Service Manager
– BI &
Performance

Cllr Jill Haynes
- Portfolio
Holder for
Corporate
Development
& Change

Social Mobility Report

A report on social
Mobility in Dorset
based on the Social
Mobility Commissions
Report

16
November
2021

Officer
request

Peter Jackson –
Principal
Research Officer
- Social

Cllr Tony
Ferrari –
Portfolio Holder
for Economic
Growth, Assets
& Property;
Cllr Andrew
Parry – Portfolio
Holder for
Children,
Education, Skills
& Early Help;
Cllr Peter Wharf
– Portfolio
Holder for Adult
Social Care &
Health

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

People &
Health
Scrutiny
Committee 2
November
2021

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Climate & Ecological
Emergency Strategy –
progress report

To provide a progress
update and present the
first public bi-annual
progress report on the
Dorset Council Climate
& Ecological
Emergency Strategy

16
November
2021

Officer
request

Antony Littlechild
– Team Manager
Sustainability

Cllr Ray Bryan
– Portfolio
Holder for
Travel,
Highways &
Environment

Budget Scrutiny
(Single Item meeting)

Consideration of the
budget proposals
before proceeding to
produce the final
budget paper for
recommendation to
Cabinet on 18 January
2022.

10
December
2021

Part of
annual
budget
process

Jim McManus –
Corporate
Director –
Finance &
Commercial

Cllr Gary
Suttle –
Portfolio
Holder for
Finance,
Commercial &
Capital
Strategy

To provide an update
on progress made to
improve compliance
rates on information
requests (Freedom of
Information and
Subject Access
Requests)

25 January
2022

Committee at
meeting on
21.9.21

Marc Eyre –
Service Manager
for Assurance

Cllr Spencer
Flower –
Leader of the
Council

Page 79

Title

Information Compliance
– update

James Fisher –
Data Protection
Officer

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

Cabinet – 18
January 2022
Full Council –
15 February
2022

Page 80

Title

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Local Land Charges
Service Update

An update on local
land charges service
performance

25 January
2022

Committee at
meeting on
21.9.21

Grace Evans –
Head of Legal
Services

Cllr Jill Haynes
– Portfolio
Holder for
Corporate
Development
& Change

Transforming Cities
Fund

Progress update

25 January
2022

Committee
request – 1
December
2020

Wayne Sayers –
Transport
Planning
Manager

Cllr Ray Bryan
- Portfolio
Holder for
Travel,
Highways and
Environment

Post-scrutiny review of
plans for summer 2021
tourism in Dorset

To review the plans
that were put in place
to help manage visitor
demand for the peak
tourist period during
2021

25 January
2022

Chairman of
committee

Jack Wiltshire –
Head of
Highways

Cllr Graham
Carr-Jones –
Portfolio
Holder for
Housing &
Community
Safety
Cllr Ray Bryan
– Portfolio
Holder for
Highways,
Travel &
Environment

Matt Piles –
Corporate
Director,
Economic Growth
& Infrastructure
John Sellgren –
Executive
Director of Place

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Property Strategy &
Asset Management
Plan Quarterly
Monitoring Report

Review and comment
upon progress in
achieving the actions
identified in the
Property & Asset
Management Strategy
Action Plan and areas
needing to be given
priority.

25 January
2022

Committee
request

Ade Adebayo Interim Service
Lead – Assets &
Property

Cllr Tony
Ferrari –
Portfolio
Holder for
Economic
Growth,
Assets &
Property

Corporate Complaints
Team – Annual Report

An overview of the
volume and impacts of
Dorset Council’s
complaints through the
Corporate Complaints
Team 2020/21

25 January
2022

Antony
Bygrave –
Senior
Assurance
Officer Complaints

Antony Bygrave –
Senior Assurance
Officer Complaints

Cllr Spencer
Flower –
Leader of
Council

Post-scrutiny review of
Dog-related Public
Space Protection Order
(PSPO)

To review the
implementation of the
3-year Dog-related
PSPO which came into
effect on 1 January
2021

8 March
2022

Chairman of
committee

Janet Moore –
Service Manager,
Environmental
Protection

Planning Advisory
Service Peer Review of
Dorset Council’s
Planning Service

Progress report on
implementation of the
action plan

8 March
2022

Cabinet – 8
December
2020

Mike Garrity –
Head of Planning

Cllr Laura
Miller –
Portfolio
Holder for
Customer &
Community
Services
Cllr David
Walsh Portfolio
Holder for
Planning

Page 81

Title

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

People &
Health
Scrutiny
Committee –
31 January
2022

Page 82

Title

Description

Date of
Requested
committee by
meeting

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Performance Scrutiny

To review the most
recent performance
information and use
this to agree items to
add to the committee
forward plan for further
analysis

8 March
2022

David Bonner
– Service
Manager – BI
&
Performance

David Bonner –
Service Manager
– BI &
Performance

Cllr Jill
HaynesPortfolio
Holder for
Corporate
Development
& Change

Property Strategy &
Asset Management
Plan Quarterly
Monitoring Report

Review and comment
upon progress in
achieving the actions
identified in the
Property & Asset
Management Strategy
Action Plan and areas
needing to be given
priority.

25 April
2022

Committee
request

Ade Adebayo Interim Service
Lead – Assets &
Property

Cllr Tony
Ferrari –
Portfolio
Holder for
Economic
Growth,
Assets &
Property

Review and update:
summary of alternative
service provision
following closure of
tourist information
centres (TICs) in 2021

To set out the
alternative service
provision
arrangements that
have been developed
by town council &
communities since
closing TICs in
Dorchester, Sherborne
& Wareham in 2021

26 May
2022

Chairman of
committee

Lisa Cotton –
Head of
Customer,
Libraries &
Archives

Cllr Laura Miller
– Portfolio
Holder for
Customer &
Community
Services

Other
meetings?
(SLT / CLT /
Cabinet)

The Cabinet Forward Plan - November 2021 to February (Publication date 11 October 2021 (Updated on 26
Ocotber 2021)
For the period 1 NOVEMBER 2021 to 28 FEBRUARY 2022
(Publication date - ???)
Explanatory Note:
This Forward Plan contains future items to be considered by the Cabinet and Council. It is published 28 days before the next meeting of the Committee.
The plan includes items for the meeting including key decisions. Each item shows if it is ‘open’ to the public or to be considered in a private part of the
meeting.

Page 83

Definition of Key Decisions
Key decisions are defined in Dorset Council's Constitution as decisions of the Cabinet which are likely to -

(a) to result in the relevant local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the relevant
local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (Thresholds - £500k); or

(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of
the relevant local authority.”

In determining the meaning of “significant” for these purposes the Council will have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State in
accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000 Act. Officers will consult with lead members to determine significance and sensitivity.

Agenda Item 12

Cabinet Portfolio Holders 2021/22
Spencer Flower
Leader / Governance, Performance and Communications
Peter Wharf
Deputy Leader / Adult Social Care and Health
Gary Suttle
Finance, Commercial and Capital Strategy
Ray Bryan
Highways, Travel and Environment
Graham Carr-Jones
Housing and Community Safety
Jill Haynes
Corporate Development and Transformation
Laura Miller
Customer and Community Services
Andrew Parry
Children, Education, Skills and Early Help
Tony Ferrari
Economic Growth, Assets & Property
David Walsh
Planning

Page 84

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

November

Phase 2 Parking Charges Project

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
19 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Highways, Travel and
Environment

Elizabeth Murray, Strategic
Park ing Project Manager
elizabeth.murray@dorsetcc.
gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Place
and
Resources
Scrutiny Committee
Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
13 Jul 2021
19 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Planning

Andrew Galpin,
Infrastructure & Delivery
Planning Manager
andrew.galpin@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Vik Verma, Interim Director
of Education and Learning
vik .verma@dorsetcc.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

To consider a report on the Phase
2 Parking Charges Project.

Page 85

Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
expenditure
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Recommendation from Place and
Resources Scrutiny Committee
Position report on CIL governance
and expenditure to date.
Dorset SEND Strategy 2021-2024
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Quarter 2 (Q2) Financial
Management Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

To consider the Council’s revenue
budget position at the end of Q2
and the changes since Q1
Review of Commercial Strategy Commissioning and Procurement
Overview

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
17 Sep 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Dawn Adams, Service
Manager for Commercial
and Procurement
dawn.adams@dors etcounci
l.gov.uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation

Deborah Smart, Corporate
Director – Digital & Change
deborah.smart@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Planning

Ed Gerry, Prinicpal
Planning Policy Team
Leader
ed.gerry@dorsetcouncil.gov
.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open

Page 86

To consider a proposed revision
to the current Corporate
Procurement Strategy.
Transformation Plan Annual
Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Annual report detailing progress
against year 1 of the
transformation plan and setting
out the proposed year 2 plan
Wareham Neighbourhood Plan
2019 - 2034
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

This report relates to the making
(adoption) of the Wareham
Neighbourhood Plan 2019 - 2034.

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Dorchester Town Council Dorchester City Bid

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Leader of the Council

Rebecca Forrester,
Business Intelligence &
Performance
rebecca.forrester@dorsetco
uncil.gov.uk
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Housing and
Community Safety

Andy Frost, Community
Safety and Drug Action
Manager
andy.frost@dorsetcouncil.g
ov.uk
Executive Director, People Adults

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
8 Nov 2021

Deputy Leader and
Portfolio Holder for
Adult Social Care and
Health

Steve Veevers, Corporate
Director Operations, Adult
Care
steve.veevers@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Adults

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

To approve Dorchester Town
Council's bid for Dorchester City
Status
Dorset Domestic Abuse Strategy
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Page 87

The Council is required to publish
a domestic abuse strategy under
the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. A
strategy has been prepared in
conjunction with the Local
Domestic Abuse Partnership
Board. Cabinet are being asked to
approve the strategy and agree
for it to be published.
Adult Social Care – Future
Services
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Fully exempt

Appraisal of options for future
services
December

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
Vehicle Access Policy

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
19 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Gemma Clinton, Head of
Commercial Waste and
Strategy
gemma.clinton@dorsetwast
epartnership.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Licensing Committee
17 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Richard Conway, Service
Manager for Housing
Standards
richard.conway@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Theresa Leavy, Executive
Director of People Children
theresa.leavy@dorsetcounc
il.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Page 88

Review of legacy policy controlling
access to HRCs. This includes the use
of vans, hire vans, trailers and other
vehicle types. Policy is applicable to
all Dorset Council wards. A public
consultation will be conducted to
inform outcomes.
Park Home Fees Policy
Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open

The Park Homes Fees Policy
allows the Council to charge for a
number of licensing activities
carried out on park homes sites in
Dorset under the Mobile Homes
Act 2013 and Regulations related
to the Fit and Proper Person
Register for Park Homes.
Ofsted Feedback
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

To consider a report on the Ofsted
Feeback.

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Annual Adoption Report

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Sarah Jane Smedmor,
Corporate Director - Care &
Protection sarahjane.smedmor@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Economic Growth,
Assets and Property

Ade Adebayo, Interim
Service Lead Assets and
Property
ade.adebayo@dorsetcounci
l.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Date
18 Jan 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

To receive the annual adoption
update report.
Future Revenues & Benefits
Service provision for Dorset
Council

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
10 Nov 2021

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Part exempt

Page 89

To consider a report on the Future
Revenues & Benefits Service
provision for Dorset Council
South Walks House - Options for
Future Use

Officer Contact

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Part exempt

January 2022

Quarter 3 Financial Management
Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

To consider the Council’s revenue
budget position at the end of Q3
and the changes since Q2
Quarter 3 Council Plan Monitoring
Report

Officer Contact

Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)
Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
18 Jan 2022

Decision Maker
Dorset Council

Decision Date
15 Feb 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
1 Mar 2022

Decision Maker

Decision Date

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation

Bridget Downton, Head of
Business Insight and
Corporate Communications
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Corporate Director, Legal
and Democratic Services Monitoring Officer
(Jonathan Mair)

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Claire Shiels, Corporate
Director - Commissioning,
Quality & Partnerships
claire.shiels@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Portfolio Holder for

John Newcombe, Service

A quarterly report on the
delivery of the council's plan

Page 90

Budget Strategy Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

The Council is required to set a
balanced revenue budget, and to
approve a level of council tax as
an integral part of this.

Cabinet
Place
and
Resources
Scrutiny Committee
People and Health Scrutiny
Committee
18 Jan 2022
10 Dec 2021
10 Dec 2021

March

Annual Self Evaluation of
Children's Services
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

To receive the annual selfevaluation report.
Anti-social Behaviour Public

Place

and

Resources

Subject / Decision

Spaces Protection Orders

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Cabinet

1 Mar 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)
Overview Committee
Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
10 Nov 2021
10 Feb 2022

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

Housing and
Community Safety,
Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Manager, Licensing &
Community Safety
john.newcombe@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation

Bridget Downton, Head of
Business Insight and
Corporate Communications
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Page 91

A review of the existing Anti-social
Behaviour Public Spaces
Protection Orders for Weymouth &
Portland, Dorchester, Bridport,
West Bay and Lyme Regis as well
as consideration of supplementary
orders to tackle antisocial
behaviour is additional areas as
identified by the Community
Safety Team in consultation with
the Police.
April

Quarter 4 Council Plan Monitoring
Report
Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open

A quarterly report on the
delivery of the council's plan

Private/Exempt Items for Decision
Each item in the plan above marked as ‘private’ will refer to one of the following paragraphs.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

7.

Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
Information which reveals that the shadow council proposes:(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Page 92
10

Date of committee: 5 October 2021
Date published: 7 October 2021
Date of implementation: 15 October 2021
DECISIONS OF THE CABINET
5 OCTOBER 2021

The following decisions were made by the Cabinet on 5 October 2021and will
come into force and may be implemented on 15 October 2021 unless the decision
is called in for scrutiny.
In accordance with the council’s constitution, any six members of the same
relevant Scrutiny Committee may request the Monitoring Officer to ‘call-in’ a
decision for scrutiny. The Monitoring Officer will be provided with written notice
that will identify the decision to be called-in and the ground for the call-in when the
request is made. If satisfied that there are reasonable grounds for the proposed
call-in, the Monitoring Officer will notify the decision-maker of the call-in within 5
clear working days. The deadline for this request is 14 October 2021.
The full call-in procedure is set out in the Constitution or for further information and
advice please telephone Kate Critchel on 01305 252234

Page 93

5

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (MTFP) AND BUDGET STRATEGY
Cabinet members:
(a)

Noted the updated cost pressures set out in the paper and the validation work that
had been carried out on them

(b)

Agreed the assumptions being used in the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP);

(c)

Noted the financial gap arising from (i) and (ii) above;

(d)

Agreed the 2022/23 draft principles for budget setting;

(e)

Noted the approach to closing the budget gap that was set out in the paper,
recognising that this was work in progress;

(f)

Agreed that Portfolio Holders work with officers to continue to identify and develop
savings opportunities;

(g)

Noted the emerging national context set out in this paper;

(h)

Endorsed the next steps and timetable leading up to the 2022/23 budget being
presented to full Council on 15 February 2022.

Reason to note and receive the report
This paper was presented to Cabinet to provide an update on the budget gap for 2022/23
and the subsequent years of the MTFP and to update on progress on action/savings to
date.

6

LGA FINANCE PEER CHALLENGE REPORT AND ACTION PLAN
Decision of the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Commercial and Capital Strategy
That the action plan, in response to the recommendations set out in the corporate peer challenge
report, be approved.
Executive Decision - LGA Finance Peer Review - Report and Action Plan - Dorset Council
Reason for the Decision
To ensure that the council acts on the corporate peer team’s recommendations.

8

DORSET SKILLS COMMISSION
Decision of the Portfolio Holder for Children, Education, Skill and Early Help
(a) That a Dorset Skills Commission be created between November 2021 and
September 2022

Page 94

(b) For this Commission to facilitate the skills delivery needed for an effective and atpace response to a jobs-led approach to COVID-19 economic recovery across
Dorset
(c) That the Commission undertakes a review into the Dorset skills landscape – with a
particular consideration of the National Skills White Paper, producing a report that
lays out a potential skills journey and opportunities/needs based on 10-, 20- and
30-years trajectories
(d) That the Commission works closely with the Dorset Skills Board and Panel to
support immediate implementation of the wider skills priorities within the agreed
Dorset Skills Plan and Dorset Investment Prospectus.
(e) That authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Place, in consultation with
the Portfolio Holder(s)for Children, Education, Skills, and Early Help and Economic
Growth, Assets and Property, to agree with BCP Council and the Dorset LEP the
governance structure and membership of the Board for inclusion in the Terms of
Reference.

Executive Decision - Dorset Skills Commission - Dorset Council
Reason for Decision
Delivering sustainable economic growth, increasing productivity and the number of highquality jobs in Dorset, creating great places to live, work and visit” is one of the five
Corporate priorities in the Dorset Council Plan. People and Skills is one of the six
foundations of the Dorset Council Economic Growth Strategy.
The establishment of a dedicated Commission will oversee an effective and at pace
response to a jobs-led approach to COVID-19 economic recovery. It would also provide
an objective and independent review of the future Dorset Skills landscape, helping to
shape a world-class skills and learning infrastructure for all communities
13

WEYMOUTH QUAY REGENERATION PROJECT PAYMENTS OVER £500,000
Decision of the Portfolio Holder for Highways, Travel and Environment
(a) That payments in excess of £500k be paid by Dorset Council in relation to the
delivery of the Weymouth Quay Regeneration Project.
(b) That the agreement to make such payments be delegated to the Executive Director
for Place to approve, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Highways, Travel
and Environment and the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Assets and
Property.
Executive Decision - Weymouth Quay Regeneration Project payments over £500,000 Dorset Council

Page 95

Reason for the decision
There is potential for a number of transactions in the coming months to be in excess of the
£500k threshold, and by agreeing to the recommendation disbursements of grant funds
can be made as required and without delay. In agreeing payments under the delegation,
the Executive Director will ensure that the funds are released only in accordance with CCF
and MHCLG grant conditions, thereby minimising risk to DC as accountable body.

14

TRICURO OPTIONS PAPER
Decision of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Health
That the recommendations 1 to 3, set out in the exempt report to Cabinet of 5 October
2021, be approved.
Executive Decision - Tricuro - Dorset Council

Page 96

